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Financial and Operational Highlights B i EE £ KR E

(Amounts expressed in HK$’ million, unless specified)

(LEBBETREN - BEFZHI)

Turnover gEE 7,630 8,210 8,531 7,858 9,343
Profit for the year attributable to KRR ERERES

ordinary equity holders of the Company L AEE T 169 325 304 479 1,051
Total equity AR 4,930 5,378 5,725 5,897 6,561
Total assets BWEE 8,312 8,579 9,220 9,975 9,325
Total liabilities to total equity ratio (times) #AAERERRLR(EE) 0.7 06 06 07 0.4
Total interest-bearing debts to B S ERRAER

total equity ratio (times) B (EE) 0.2 03 03 0.4 0.1
Current ratio (times) Bt (=) 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 29
Trade and bills receivables RS REE

to turnover (days) EX%(A) 44 42 45 37 27
Inventories to turnover (days) BEEEEH) 101 97 9% 95 80
Net assets per share (HK cents) BREEFEBEML) 357 389 380 394 444
Return on total assets (%) BEELIRE%) 2.0 38 33 48 1.3
Return on turnover (%) SEIEEIREY) 2.2 4.0 3.6 6.1 11.2
Interest cover (times) MERELZ(ZH) 5 12 12 20 91
EBITDA BB EREBHEARIE 821 693 769 802 1,637
EBITDA on turnover (%) BB ER

HEHARBLEER(%) 10.8 8.4 9.0 10.2 17.5

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) EAGRERIGBELL) 122 235 22,0 346 76.0
Dividends per share (HK cents) BRRECBE)) 10.0 30.0 35.0 62.0 62.0
Dividend yield (%) RS EHE(%) 8.0 102 85 119 82
Number of issued shares (million) ERITRAEE(AE) 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382 1,382
Number of employees: EEAY:

Hong Kong and Macau BERRM 47 769 697 601 622

Taiwan aE 7 9 10 10 9

Mainland China FEIARE 11,111 11,879 12,638 13,368 14,722
Total ag 11,589 12,657 13,345 13,979 15,353

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020




Notes:

Financial and Operational Highlights B iR £ KR E

Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and tax
by the interest expenses.

EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation
expenses.

Number of shares was on weighted average basis.

Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting
period.

The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for each
financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the Group as
at the end of the respective reporting period.
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Chairman’s Statement £ [E#{ %

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company was HK$169 million, compared with
HK$325 million reported for 2019. Revenue decreased by 7.1% and
gross margin was slightly higher at 32.0%. The Board has declared no
final dividend.

The Group experienced one of the most challenging years historically.
Business environment was difficult due to multiple macro factors. The
Sino-US trade tensions weakened the global economic confidence and
consumer sentiment. In Hong Kong, foreign visitors began to drop
substantially since June 2019 when social events escalated. Coupled
with unseasonably warm winter weather and other factors, retail sales
plummeted further in the second half of the year.

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 started to
halt social and economic activities seriously nationwide. The business
environment has become even more difficult. In support of official
infection prevention and containment policies, our manufacturing sites
in Mainland China suspended their operations for an extended period
of time after the Chinese New Year. Under such adverse circumstances,
the Group’s performance in the first half of 2020 will inevitably be
affected.

The impacts brought about by the pandemic infection are expected to
be temporary. The Group will closely monitor the situation and take
a positive approach to eliminate the business obstacles. With a sound
financial position, the Management is confident to overcome the
challenges ahead.

On behalf of the board, | would like to thank our shareholders, business
partners and bankers for their continuous support. | would also like
to extend my gratitude to our colleagues for their devotedness to the
Group.

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman
Hong Kong, 19 June 2020

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis g 2 i

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's total revenue
decreased by 7.1% to HK$7,630 million (2019: HK$8,210 million). Profit
for the year attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company
amounted to HK$169 million (2019: HK$325 million), a drop of 48.0%.
The Group’s gross profit margin was 32.0% (2019: 31.7%), a slight
increase of 0.3 percentage points from last year.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend (2019:
HK15.0 cents per ordinary share). As the interim dividend was 10.0
cents, total dividend per ordinary share for the year would be HK10.0
cents (2019: HK30.0 cents), a drop of 66.7% from last year.

Textile business

Turnover of the textile business rose by 3.4% to HK$4,919 million (2019:
HK$4,759 million). The amount represented 64.5% (2019: 58.0%) of
the Group's total revenue. During the first half of the year, the Sino-
US trade disputes had curtailed the overall global economic confidence.
The customers therefore turned caution in procurement. Towards the
end of 2019, the trade war showed signs of settlement that a slight
business confidence recovery was seen. In early 2020, the COVID-19
outbreak started to bring severe impact to world economic activities.
As a result of suspension of business operation across the universe, the
Group has experienced an increase in cancellation of orders and delay
in shipment of products. Under such adverse situation, the business
performance in the first half of 2020 will inevitably be affected. In
the period, raw material prices were generally stable. Revenue and
gross profit margin increased by 3.4% and 4.9% respectively. The
performance and the key financial ratios of the business were as below:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

i K2 0 4

XREEEARRER

BE-Z-ZF=A=+—BLEXTHREE £&
EZBRARD71%EEET30BBT(ZE—N
F I BES2108E L) c AN AL EERMIEEEMN
REERAABEI9BEET(ZZ—NF  BE325
BERT) > TH#48.0% c AEBZEFEAH32.0% (=
Z—NF 131.7%) » BREFEHIGMOEEMDEL -

EZETERRERERE(ZZT—LE 858
BRABHE15.00L) - AAFEIRE 3%,%%1001114 g%
BRREZEHELEBE10.00L(ZS—HE B
30.01l) > BREF T #66.7%

B

EBER CEEE L H3A4% S BEA49198ET(=
T—NF BE47598ET) - KB B AREELE
HE264.5%(ZF—NF 1 58.0%) c EL¥F >
ZESFRHB T RMBELESL c BEEREL
AMESHEE - E-T—NFK EZBEIHIR
SEBELOKREEE - E-ZT-ZFY > 19HER
MASBEFRS M RALEIDIREITE - BN
R EEEFE  AEELETEICHEMRER
ERENER - ERTRRET  —S-TFL¥
FEBREAKBURR I HE - Bl REMEREX
HTIE c MAREFES B EF3.4%K%4.9% o I3
B2 RIBARETEGELEZRRIAT ¢

(LB BEETBEN + BRFZHI)

Net sales HEFHE 4,919 4,759 4,535 3,807 4,741
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 232 183 15.9 16.9 21.7
Operating profit (note 1) EERBEET) 540 354 241 350 666
EBITDA (note 1) 8B ERESERRE ) 770 526 410 518 842
Return on total assets (%) (note 2) BEEWRE(%)(Hi2) 6.9 42 1.9 49 96
Return on sales (%) (note 2) SHEWEGE (%) (H1E2) 8.9 5.9 2.9 10.2 14.2
Return on equity (%) (note 2) RWERE(%) (M72) 10.8 6.8 3.0 8.4 12,5
Capital expenditure ERMRH 76 160 162 143 111

Notes: Mt -

(1) Exclude interest income and rental income. (1) TEEFEWRAREELWLA ©

(2)  Exclude rental income. 2) TEIEFHEWA -

EXkEREAFRAT —Z-ZTFRH



Management’s Discussion and Analysis B2 8 2 i il &2 547

REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
(continued)

Retail and distribution business

Sales of the business amounted to HK$2,709 million (2019: HK$3,448
million), a decrease of 21.4%. The amount was 35.5% (2019: 42.0%) of
the Group's total turnover. In the period, a combination of factors did
affect our business performance in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
The Sino-US trade disputes had curtailed global economic growth,
unseasonably warm weather also drastically hampered the winter sales.
Retail business in Hong Kong also plunged due to social events in the
year. The outbreak of the new coronavirus infection is expected to
harm our retail business significantly in the first quarter of 2020. The
performance and the key financial ratios of the business were as below:

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were as
follows:

(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, unless specified)

EROERARER®)

ZERDHER

HEBHEFEBBE2TINEET(ZE—NE B
B3 A48EHETT)  HA21.4% o WE B AAEEBL
¥F235.5%(ZF—NF 1 42.0%)  BiR > FEIK
EREBERRRT —BEREEMFE - HXEHU
DESEREEERIE  BORARAINISLXREE
THREFE - TR BEETEEBIILSSHETE
MEETH - FHETRFSFELEEBREEE_Z
“EEE-FHNEEER  c NEBCRBERIENK
LERBIIAT -

(@) EBRBREIBUBLLRBIMT

(LBEE, ' BRI EIEEEAS)
Net sales EEFE 2,709 3,448 3,989 4,044 4,592
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 415 50.1 47.4 455 46.6
Sales growth of comparable shops ALt EMHEL R R
(%) (note 1) (%) (hiE1) (17.1) (12.8) (6.9) (7.8) 7.3

Operating profit/(loss) (note 2) BEFB/(BE) (Hz22) (316) (110) 14 (%) (93)
EBITDA (note 2) BB EREBHEAFEHZ2) 3 (24) 102 (11) 8
Return on total assets (%) (note 3)  BEEWEEE(%)(H5#3) (11.1) 4.3) 04 (4.8) 43)
Return on sales (%) (note 3) HERRE%) (H73) (10.6) (2.9) 0.2 (2.3) (2.4)
Return on equity (%) (note 3) BRWEE(%) (M73) (53.4) (8.8) 0.7 (15.9) (9.5)
Capital expenditure BT H 146 76 9% 73 9%

Notes: it -

(1) Comparable shops include shops with full year operation during the (1) HLIEHIERZFREN —F1)EL2FEE

year and the preceding year. AR ©
(2)  Exclude interest income and rental income. 2) TEEFAEKRARHEEHKA -
(3) Exclude rental income. 3) TEEFHEWA -
(b) the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: (b) BREIEREHEEIWNUT :

(HK$'million)

(B%EET)

Baleno K
Others Hith
Total &3

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2020

2,484 3,073 3,274 3,144 3,260
225 375 715 900 1,332
2,709 3,448 3,989 4,044 4,592
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT EKOERARER®)

(continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued) BERDHEER(E)

()  the development in different markets was as follows: () HBiMSREBRAOT :
Mainland China B K BE

Net sales (HK$'million) HEFH(EMFET) 2,085 2,767 3,414 3,476 4,013

Decrease in net sales (%) SHEFBZHD (%) (25) (19) ) (13) -

Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** SEREAE(THR) 1690117 1,626,047 1,781,314 1,723,190 1,779,340

Number of sales associates*# EEE R 3,446 4,182 4,946 5,493 6,425

Number of outlets* FIhE R+ 1,838 2,183 2,499 2,326 2,770
Hong Kong BB

Net sales (HK$'million) HEFR(EHEET) 624 681 575 568 579
Increase/(decrease) in net sales (%)  $HEFE2EM,/ (A )(%) (8) 18 1 )] 19
Retail floor area (sq. ft.)** ZEREEE(FHR)* 90,281 87,752 79,822 65,515 64,543
Number of sales associates*# EEEHA+ 288 571 484 385 395
Number of outlets** FImE R 83 78 73 60 64

* As at the end of the reporting period * RIREAA

# For self-managed stores # BHEE

s Including self-managed stores, consignment stores and franchise s BIEEERE « BHERGTAEE LT

stores

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a sound financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank borrowings and the gearing ratio as at
the year end were 2.0, HK$1,230 million and -0.1 (2019: 2.0, HK$1,529
million and -0.1) respectively. Bank borrowings decreased during the
year as the Group continued to repay its bank loans with cash inflow
from its operating activities. The gearing ratio refers to the ratio of the
total interest-bearing debts, net of cash and cash equivalents, to the
total equity.

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills receivables to
turnover and the inventories to turnover were 5 times, 44 days and 101
days (2019: 12 times, 42 days and 97 days) respectively. The interest
cover decreased compared with last year mainly because the Company
adopted HKFRS 16 Leases during the year and the marked decrease
in profit before tax of the Group compared with last year as a result
of the widespread of COVID-19 pandemic happened during the year.
Under HKFRS 16, the accretion of interest related to the affected
leases were classified as finance costs in current year, instead of as
rental expenses forming part of the selling and distribution expenses
or administrative expenses in last year. The Group mainly satisfied its
funding requirements with cash inflow from its operating activities and
bank borrowings. At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents, the
equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company and the
unutilized banking facilities were HK$1,737 million, HK$4,930 million
and HK$5,491 million (2019: HK$2,080 million, HK$5,378 million and
HK$5,586 million), respectively.

Capital expenditure

The capital expenditure incurred by the Group during the year was
HK$222 million (2019: HK$236 million). The capital expenditure
incurred by the textile and garment business for the year was HK$76
million (2019: HK$160 million) mainly for the addition of plant and
machinery for the dyeing, knitting and garment factories. For the retail
and distribution business, our capital expenditure incurred for the year
amounted to HK$146 million (2019: HK$76 million). Mainly for the
addition of leasehold improvements of the retail outlets amounted to
HK$55 million (2019: HK$76 million) and for the acquisition of office
premises in Hong Kong amounted to HK$91 million (2019: Nil).

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Pledge of assets

No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019.

Contingent liabilities
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019 have been set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in managing
its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The major interest bearing
bank borrowings of the Group were HKD, USD and RMB fixed or
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within one year (2019:
within two years). At the year end, the cash and cash equivalents,
debt instruments at amortised cost and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were mainly denominated in HKD, RMB and USD.
The cash and cash equivalents were placed as fixed deposits with well
established financial institutions at fixed interest rate with maturity due
within one year (2019: within one year). And, the debt instruments at
amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
were mainly fixed interest rate investments with maturity due within
six years or at perpetuity (2019: within six years or at perpetuity). As
affected by the escalating China-US tension and the profound impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic, the economic outlook became more uncertain.
The interest rate is expected to fall close to zero for a much longer
period. The Group will continue to monitor the interest rate risk and
arrange appropriate financial instruments to reduce its risk whenever
appropriate.

During the year, the major assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses and
procurements of the Group were denominated in HKD, USD, RMB,
YEN and NTD and the Group had arranged foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the year end, the Group had about 11,589 (2019: 12,657) employees
in the Greater China. The remuneration of the employees was largely
based on industry practice and the performance of individual employee.

B REAR R ()

BEERKH
RIEEF=A=+—HR-ZE-—NF=ZA=1+—
H UEBAEEDFEIRA -

REEE
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B 5 R AR AR
FEBESBRERFERREEAR REEREM
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RARBER  YR—FR(ZE-AF  WFER)E
B RER BERREZEY  ROBERTHE
BIARBRAABEFABENERMEETERBT
ARBRER - RERBITEHA/ENE RFERDN
TREBE-FR(CE-0EF  —FR)EHNEE
FREHER - ZEBERFNEBTAREANE
SABENEREEIEDEESRRE  HMAR
NERNRKE(ZZE-NF | NFERIKE) - THE
EANPEERERRIGFTEBRBESRENERE
FE KERREEETHY - BRHAESERRER
BESTREOITKT - AEEBEREZRFIRE
B WRSER RS T ARRZREE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to promoting the long term sustainability of
the environment and communities in which it operates. The Group
has established environmental management system and energy
management system in the textile manufacturing operations in
accordance with international standards ISO 14001:2015 and ISO
50001:2011 respectively. The environmental management system
is reviewed from time to time in order to reduce risks related to
environmental issues. While the energy management system will enable
the Group to achieve continually improvement of energy performance,
and therefore reduce energy cost and greenhouse gas emissions in long
term.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group was in compliance
with the applicable environmental protection laws and regulations in
connection with waste water, greenhouse gas emission, as well as solid
waste generated from its textile manufacturing operations.

Relevant details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance
will be reported in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company to be published on the websites of the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group has ensured and continues to ensure full compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations that have significant impact on its
operations, including but not limited to laws and regulations in relation
to environmental protection, product safety and liabilities, customer
rights protection, employment and occupational safety.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in the

relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek external
advice if considered necessary.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group has been active in
participating in charitable donation, caring for the needy people and
supporting and sponsoring educational and environmental protection
activities. In addition, we also encourage our employees, customers and
business partners to partake in the aforesaid activities with a view to
developing a better future for our community.

During the year, some of the activities/organisations the Group
participated in/donated or sponsored to were:

(1)  World Wide Fund For Nature Hong Kong;

(2) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “Love Teeth Day”;

(3) The Community Chest of Hong Kong “The Community Chest
Green Day”;

(4)  Evangelical Lutheran Church Social Service - Hong Kong;

(5)  Sowers Action;

(6) St. James’ Settlement;

(7)  The Hong Kong Council of Social Service “Caring Company”; and

(8) Dongguan Branch Red Cross Society of China.

The Group believes that the development of a better future for our
community relies on the participation of people, corporations and the
government. Therefore, we will continue to invest resources in all major
social, educational and environmental protection activities to strive for
a better future for our community.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the COVID-19 pandemic would undoubtedly affect
our business performance significantly in the first half of 2020.
However, the impacts brought about by the virus are expected not to
be permanent. The management will closely monitor the situation to
deploy appropriate measures in overcoming the business challenges.

The Group remains prudent about the business outlook. With a solid
financial position and cost measures in action, the Group is confident to
weather the obstacles ahead.
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Report of the Directors EE & H &

The board of directors (the “Board”) has pleasure in presenting the
report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of the
production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments;
the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories; the
provision of franchise services and properties investment. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong
Kong, including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group; material events that have occurred since the end
of the financial year; an indication of likely future development in
the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s performance during
the year using financial key performance indicators; a discussion on
compliance with relevant laws and regulations; and a description of the
Group's environmental policies and performance and corporate social
responsibility are contained in the preceding Chairman’s Statement and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis set out on page 6 and pages 7 to
13, respectively, of this Annual Report. Those discussions form part of
this Report of the Directors.

In addition, details of the Group’s financial risk management are
disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the Group’s
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 48 to 51.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”) in
order to allow shareholders of the Group to participate in the Group's
profits whilst retain adequate reserves for the Group’s future growth.
The Group intends to make semiannual distributions which will
depend upon the anticipated consolidated annual profits of the Group,
having taken into consideration certain criteria set out in the Dividend
Policy, including the Group’s financial performance, retained profits,
distributable reserves, expected working capital requirements, capital
expenditure requirements, future expansion plans and any other factors
which the Board deems relevant.

An interim dividend of HK10.0 cents per ordinary share was paid on

3 January 2020. The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend.
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Report of the Directors EE S &

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION MBERBE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- THRAKXEERBEIEMBEEAG2LERS
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, &  SEHFIZERERZIHE > IHECERIBRTK
as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/ FERIZREEES|EHE o AR TR S EZ
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not &R ZZBD

form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS E4

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t-HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

“ECEE ZE-NE ZE-\E ZEB-tF CZZ-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYFr  BEFT  E¥TT  BEFn BETx

REVENUE WA 7,630,306 8,210,053 8,530,806 7,858,476 9,343,282
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR 270,976 397,753 467,858 520,057 1,344,536
Income tax expense E (101,922) (77,336) (151,108) (13,521) (87,416)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REERA 169,054 320,417 316,750 506,536 1,257,120
Attributable to: 5B
Ordinary equity holders of ARRERERREE
the Company 169,054 325,246 304,328 478,525 1,050,655
Non-controlling interests FERER - (4,829) 12,422 28,011 206,465

169,054 320,417 316,750 506,536 1,257,120

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS EE  BEHEFERER

As at 31 March
=HA=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

SBIRE BN ZZ-N\Ff ZEZ-tF Z2-F
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
BYFr  BETr  EETn BETrm BETx

TOTAL ASSETS wEE 8,312,332 8578956 9,219,807 9,975,465 9,324,808
TOTAL LIABILITIES BeE (3382,119)  (3,201,402) (3,494,818) (4,078,062) (2,764,179)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS RS - - (475,671)  (447,770)  (428,618)

4,930,213 5377554 5249318 5449633 6,132,011

BAESEERLT —S—2EH G



Report of the Directors EE & H &

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and construction in progress of the Group during the
year are set out in notes 12, 13 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL
There was no movement in the Company’s share capital during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 41 to the financial statements and in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2020, the Company'’s reserves available for distribution and/
or distribution in specie amounted to HK$1,493,276,000. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve,
in the total amount of HK$705,060,000, may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$1,136,000 (2019: HK$684,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for the year. Purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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Report of the Directors EE S &

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Executive Chairman)
Ting Kit Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Ho Tak

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Law Brian Chung Nin

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing directors
will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, and
still considers them to be independent as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company and each
of the executive directors as listed above may be terminated by
either party by giving not less than three months’ written notice or
compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no director
nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any
of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party during the year.
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Report of the Directors EE & H &

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 71, is the executive chairman of the Company
overseeing the planning and development of the Group. He founded
the Group in 1975 and has more than 48 years' experience in the textile
field. He is the father of Mr. Poon Ho Tak, an executive director of the
Group, and the father-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior management
of the Group.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 64, is the chief executive officer of the
Company. He is responsible for the general administration and financial
management of the Group. He joined the Group in 1991 and has more
than 10 years’ banking experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Poon Ho Tak, aged 43, is an executive director of the Company.
After his studies at The University of New South Wales, Australia, he
joined the Group as a management trainee in 2003. In October 2017,
he was appointed as the executive director of the Group overseeing
the overall general management of the textile business. He is a son of
Mr. Poon Bun Chak and a brother-in-law of Mr. Wu Chi Hang, a senior
management of the Group.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 74, has extensive experience in the securities
industry. He is a director of The Association of Former Council
Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of CEC International Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange. In addition, he was
a consultant to Dao Heng Securities Limited (1989-2008), a member of
the Election Committee for the financial services subsector election for
the 1998 Legislative Council, a former deputy chairman of The Hong
Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994) and a former
council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of the Company in July 1995.

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 70, is a director of Techluxe Investments
Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and has more than 30 years’
experience in the banking and securities industries in Hong Kong.
He was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1992.

Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, aged 62, has worked for several major
international accounting and financial institutions. Besides, he possesses
extensive experience in auditing, corporate finance and private equity.
Mr. Law graduated from University of Toronto in 1980 with a degree
in Bachelor of Commerce. He has been a member of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario, Canada since 1983. He was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company in
April 2011.
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Report of the Directors EE S &

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior management

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 57, joined the Group in 1997 and is the Group’s
financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan holds a Master’s
degree in commerce from The University of New South Wales, Australia,
and is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a certified practising accountant of the CPA Australia.
He has more than 33 years’ experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Ng Mo Ping, aged 54, is the director and general manager of a
major subsidiary of the Group's textile business. He joined the Group in
1988 and has more than 32 years' experience in the textile industry.

Mr. Wu Chi Hang, aged 36, joined the Group in 2013 and is a director
of the Group’s retail operations. Mr. Wu holds a Master of Science in
Engineering Business Management from University of Warwick in the
United Kingdom. He has more than 12 years’ experience in apparel
retailing and textile field. He is a son-in-law of Mr. Poon Bun Chak and
a brother-in-law of Mr. Poon Ho Tak.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the directors
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”) set out Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as
follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

Name of director (€] E1d14Y

EsnR =27

Executive directors:

HITES

Poon Bun Chak Founder of a family trust
EWE KIREE 2RI A

Ting Kit Chung Beneficial owner

THE BEnES

BEENEREEAEBRE#)

BREEAR

BELE BtHtm ARBEYBBERADMW
& o BR—ANECFMAFREE o REEFHRMH
FREHASEMMET S0 YABTEEHMAS:
REERBNEHMLAEEE - HABA=TZFW
FErTEETEER -

SEFPRE B0 AEBZHAERIRMNE
NEZEBRAKE - WR—NWNANFENARER -
BEA=T-FHBEER -

HEELE =+ AEETEERES - TR
TE-ZEMARER - HELRFAREERAZT
EEEEEETEN - REFTET _FNRHZTER
ML c MABWERE S RERBEEREEZ
IRK o

EERROREBERD 2EZRAR

R-B-BE=A=+-R  ALTREGEERE
D) EISARTREOBRER - RIRBCBRAE
% EDRAD( EHRAD K A2 ERTA
EBETHSRDOEET ) (BEFH ) BAK
AARBRS - SEFEADARAHREE (TR
ROESRMEEODEXVE) HRG RAAARE 28
HRHAMT :

REDBEBRZER

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital

SR SNCTTRA: Sy
RABH R

Number of
ordinary

I ETEE
BEEAR
2H

1 682,414,104 49.4
6,100,000 0.4
RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER



Report of the Directors EE & H &

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Note:

1. Mr. Poon Bun Chak is a founder of a family trust and is deemed to be
interested in 682,414,104 Shares held under the family trust. For details,
please refer to the “Substantial shareholders’ and other person’s interests
in shares and underlying shares” under the Report of the Directors.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in the Company granted to any directors
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON'’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2020, the following interests of 5% or more of the issued
share capital of the Company were recorded in the register of interests
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO:
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Report of the Directors EE S &

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSON’'S FERREKEMATRRHGREBER G E

INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (&)
(continued)
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RAEAAFEBRZHR -

Capacity
514
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee
ZFEA
Poon’s Holdings Limited Through controlled corporation
BREZERERLR EZIEHIR T
Farrow Star Limited Directly owned
HEEE
Edgbaston Investment Partners LLP Investment manager
REKE
Note: Wit -
1. UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, as a trustee of a family trust founded by Mr. 1.

Poon Bun Chak, holds the entire issued share capital of Poon’s Holdings
Limited through its nominee, UBS Nominee Limited. Poon’s Holdings
Limited holds the entire issued share capital of Farrow Star Limited. Farrow
Star Limited in turn holds 682,414,104 shares of the Company. Therefore,
each of Mr. Poon Bun Chak, UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited, Poon’s Holdings
Limited and Farrow Star Limited is deemed to be interested in 682,414,104
Shares held by Farrow Star Limited.

Percentage of
Number of  the Company’s

ordinary issued share

shares held capital
BEZER GAQAEET

= RAB =R

1 682,414,104 49.4
1 682,414,104 49.4
1 682,414,104 49.4
96,683,000 7.0

UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited (1E 5 S ik 15 i B9 &
FEA  ZISiTHBHIESER V) BBEAEAUBS
Nominee Limited #5 5 & FC 1Z it IR 22 a1 #9 £ &5
ERITRA o« FREIZRERL &7 E Farrow Star
Limited #9285 21T RA o Farrow Star Limited#
B L T682,414, 1041817 ° FEUt - FEHEL
4~ UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited » EEZRER L
& R Farrow Star LimitedJ# 8 5 # & Farrow Star
Limited T3 H #9682,414, 1048 iZ (7 H#E 2 ©

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person, other than BRENFIEEEN RZZE-ZEF=A=+—H0 #&
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section AT (BRADBESHER D FMN Ll ESHEKR
“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” 1 RAEEARHG 2R RKE |—E /N RERATRMD
above, had registered an interest and short position in the shares or  #HEARMDH » HEBER(ES RIERHI)E3361%
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded  FU#HZERZRKXE ©

pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out below, disclosed
in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, and have confirmed that these continuing connected transactions
were entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii)  on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;
and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on

terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Ernst & Young, the Company’s independent auditor, were engaged to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Ernst
& Young have issued their unqualified letter containing their findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed below by the Group in accordance with relevant clauses of
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions:

In accordance with Rules 14A.49 of the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to disclose certain details of its non-exempt continuing
connected transactions in compliance with Rule 14A.71 and 14A.72.

(1)  Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a connected person

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL"), a company controlled
and owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Tianjin Bin
Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282-286 Bin Jiang Road,
He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as a retail outlet for the
retail and distribution business of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rents of
RMB1,329,900.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions: (continued)

(2)

(3)

Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a connected
person

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a company wholly-
owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease 22 Perkins Road,
Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director’s quarter
of the Group for a term of two years commencing from 1 April
2018 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.

Lease of a property as a training center from a connected person

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease agreement
with Winson Link Enterprises Limited (“WLEL"), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director and
controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease Room 4207B,
42nd Floor, Metroplaza Tower I, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai
Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong and a car parking space from
WLEL as a training center of the Group for a term of two years
commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent of HK$63,200.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and

within the knowledge of the Board, at least 25% of the Company’s total

issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as

auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Poon Bun Chak
Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 19 June 2020
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and enhancing corporate value and accountability. The
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules have been adopted to
shape our corporate governance structure. This report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 March 2020 under different aspects.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

As at 31 March 2020, the Board comprised of six members. The three
executive directors included Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Ting Kit Chung
and Mr. Poon Ho Tak. The three independent non-executive directors
(“INEDs") included Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Law
Brian Chung Nin. Mr. Poon Ho Tak is a son of Mr. Poon Bun Chak.

All the existing independent non-executive directors of the Company
have a term of one year, and they are subject to retirement and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
Clause 87 of the Company’s bye-laws.

Executive chairman and chief executive officer

The executive chairman and the chief executive officer are Mr. Poon
Bun Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung respectively; therefore the roles of
the executive chairman and the chief executive officer are segregated.
The primary role of the executive chairman is to provide leadership
for the Board and to ensure that it works effectively in discharging its
responsibilities. The chief executive officer is responsible for the day-to-
day management of the Group’s business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence and qualification of independent non-executive directors
The Company has three INEDs representing more than one third of
its Board, which is in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. All the INEDs possess a wide range of business and
financial experience. One of the INEDs, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin,
possesses professional accounting qualification in full compliance with
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, all the INEDs have confirmed their independence for the
year ended 31 March 2020.

Role of the Board

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board and the
day-to-day management of the business is delegated to the executive
management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1)

to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2)  to monitor the performance of each operating segment;

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives;

(4)  to authorise material borrowings and expenditures;

(5) to prepare and approve financial statements, annual and interim
reports, and make judgments that are fair and reasonable in the
preparation of the Company’s disclosure statements;

(6) to perform corporate governance functions in accordance
with the CG Code, including the determination of the Group's
corporate governance policies, and the review and monitoring of
the corporate governance practices of the Group; and

(7)  to oversee and review the effectiveness of the risk management

and internal control systems of the Group through review of the
reports from Audit Committee.

Directors’ insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
directors in connection with the discharge of their responsibilities.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Induction and continuous professional development

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment so as to
ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company as well as the obligation and responsibility
of being a director under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Reading materials on the latest development of applicable
laws, rules and regulations will be provided to directors where
appropriate. All directors are also encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expense.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the directors
received the following training during the financial year:

Directors
-
Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak EWE
Ting Kit Chung THR
Poon Ho Tak SR
Independent non-executive directors BAFHTES
Au Son Yiu 23
Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
A: reading materials relating to the Group, general business or director’s
duties and responsibilities, etc.
B: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

Board process

The Company has in place clear board process. Regular board meetings
are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas and accompanying
board papers are served to all directors at least five business days in
advance of each board meeting to facilitate informed discussion and
decision making. Directors may include any matters they wish to discuss
in the agendas. Minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared and kept by the company secretary of the Company, and are
open for inspection by directors upon request. All directors have access
to the advice and services of the company secretary, and are allowed to
seek external professional advice if needed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Annual general meeting and board meetings

The Company held an annual general meeting and four regular
board meetings during the year ended 31 March 2020. Attendance of
individual Board members at the meetings is set out below:

Directors

=

Executive directors HITES

Poon Bun Chak EWIE

Ting Kit Chung TR

Poon Ho Tak BEE
Independent non-executive directors BIYFHITES
Au Son Yiu ELE

Cheng Shu Wing LI EES

Law Brian Chung Nin EE

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three board committees to oversee certain
aspects of the Company’s affairs. Each board committee has its own
terms of reference relating to its authority and duties, which have been
approved by the Board and are reviewed periodically. The terms of
reference of each board committee are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr. Law Brian Chung
Nin, Mr. Au Son Yiu, and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The Audit Committee
is chaired by Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin, a qualified accounting
professional.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit committee (continued)
The principal duties of the Audit Committee include:

(a)

monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;
(b) monitoring and assessing the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

(@]

monitoring the performance of the Group's internal audit team;
(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external auditor,
the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions of the
Group.

The Audit Committee held six meetings during the year ended 31 March
2020 to review the followings:

(@) therisk management and internal control of the Group;

(b) the effectiveness of internal audit function;

() the financial reporting process and the financial statements of the
Group; and

(d) the continuing connected transactions pursuant to the Listing

Rules.

The attendance of Audit Committee meetings during the year ended 31
March 2020 is set out below:

Members of the Audit Committee

EREEEHRE

Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Au Son Yiu 23
Cheng Shu Wing LSS

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

EER

wE

BEEZE2H)

EREER(H)

EREEETERENTE

() EEBBHRENER

(b) EERFEAEERRETERNBEZRE

(0 EEAEENPDETEAZRE

(d) ZERIMPLBEAWEARBE FFFBEARE
BARRR © R
() EHAKEZBERS LRHER-

ZEEZA=T-HUEFER  BXER
SREBRUERUT ¢

() AEENEBEERAIBEE

(b)  PUBRPEEIZERAEZ A ;

(0 FEENHBEEREZFRVEHRE R
(d) RELTRABETHSEFRERS -

BREEENEE_Z-_ZF=A=1+-HLFER
SROFECEEHIINOT

Attended/Number of meetings held

during the tenure of office

RERRHE BITERRE

6/6
6/6
6/6



Corporate Governance Report 2 &R &

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the
Listing Rules. The Remuneration Committee consists of three INEDs and
one executive director, namely Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing,
Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr. Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The
Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Au Son Yiu.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management as well
as the compensations payable to directors. The remuneration of the
directors and senior management is determined with reference to
the performance of each individual and the Company, the market
conditions and the industry practice. Besides, the Remuneration
Committee will ensure that no director or any of his associate will be
involved in the determination of his own remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration Committee
held three meetings to make recommendations to the Board on
directors’ fee as well as the remuneration and performance bonus of
executive directors and senior management.

The attendance of Remuneration Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

Members of the Remuneration Committee

FHESERE

Au Son Yiu B4R
Cheng Shu Wing BRI AL
Law Brian Chung Nin R
Ting Kit Chung TiEs
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration committee (continued)

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management by band for the year ended 31
March 2020 is set out in note 7 to the financial statements contained in
this Annual Report.

Further details of the directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
March 2020 are disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements contained
in this Annual Report.

Nomination committee

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) consists of three INEDs and one executive director, namely
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Law Brian Chung Nin and Mr.
Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The Nomination Committee is chaired by
Mr. Cheng Shu Wing.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendation
of candidates with appropriate experience and qualification to the
Board; reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
reviewing nomination policy for directors and Board diversity policy;
and assessing independence of INEDs.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination Committee
held one meetings to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board ensuring that the Board has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience; to review nomination policy for directors and Board
diversity policy; to review and recommend the re-appointment of
directors standing for re-election at the Company’s 2019 annual general
meeting; and to assess independence of the INEDs.

The attendance of Nomination Committee meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2020 is set out below:

Members of the Nomination Committee

REZEENE

Cheng Shu Wing LSS
Au Son Yiu EAE
Law Brian Chung Nin EME
Ting Kit Chung THER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has undertaken the corporate governance function to
maintain effective corporate governance within the Group. The
corporate governance duties of the Board have been set out in the
terms of reference of the Board on corporate governance functions
which are available on the website of the Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board reviewed and
monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors; approved the adoption of revised term of reference of
Nomination Committee; and reviewed the Company’s compliance with
the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET OUT IN
THE CG CODE

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
throughout the financial year, except for the following deviations:

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the
Board should attend the annual general meeting of the Company.

The chairman of the Board has delegated the duty of attending
the annual general meeting to the chief executive officer of the
Company. The chairman considers the chief executive officer a
suitable person for taking up such duty as the chief executive
officer has been serving for similar duties for many years and he
has good understanding of each operating segment of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s code of
conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the directors. Based
on specific enquiry of the Company’s directors, they have all complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
financial year.

TEERERE

DEERMAL
ESERERTEXTANE  EAKEMERENN

TEER EFTLEETANBECHNESSTHE
REERBEEZ2ERY - ZBERITEHERE
DR

E"ESZ:-_——\,—QE B=+—HLFER EZ2F

EERARNTNEEER LNBERRIEH - ESMH
iﬁ:J'l&?-ir BEERRE }tl:&?xﬁm;e%;fi PACHIES
ZHRIREHEATNATRERETEEERTAR
WEEENER

FEaFEERTRRERZFRAKRI
REEWRR  ARAARFMBEFE-EFG LHR
BUF &+ PUPrE 2 EERTRIFIA TR - T
BUGRSTERSN -

TEEARTHEI2RECTESE2EREAR
FEAQTRZBRRBERE -

EEEIREEERRBEAG 2RBEZER
DETHAREIT - EERHZITHERER
PRBEEBEAE  FZTRARCEZEY
TRERBENES  THASEREES BT
T BERR o

EENRSFRS
ARARADRNEEFAERAR R NESETADTR
$RH2TH - BAAANEES2EN  FEEY
AR B B B PR B 2R o

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER



Corporate Governance Report £ BRI E

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Chan Chi Hon, is responsible for facilitating
the board process, as well as communications among directors, with
shareholders and management. The Company Secretary’s biography
has been set out in the “Biographical details of Directors and Senior
Management” section of the Report of the Directors. During the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Company Secretary undertook over 15 hours
of professional training to upgrade his skills and knowledge.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2020, fees paid/payable for audit and
non-audit services by the Company to its principal external auditor were
as follows:

Services

R

Audit services rendered B R METT RS
Review of continuing connected transactions EHFERERS

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company. The statement from the external auditor of the Company
about their responsibilities has been set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 38 to 47.

The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems. Such systems are designed to mitigating
risks inherent in our business faced by the Group to an acceptable
level, but not eliminating all risks. Hence, such systems can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement in
financial information or financial loss.

Through the Audit Committee, the Board reviews the effectiveness and
efficiency of risk management and internal control systems annually.
To achieve this, the Audit Committee, acting on behalf of the Board,
oversees the following process:

(1)  regular reviews of the principal business risks and the control
measures to mitigate, reduce or transfer such risks;

(2)  risk-based audits on the major operating activities by the internal
audit team; and
(3) discussion with the external auditor matters on auditing, internal

control and financial report.

For the risk assessment and control activities, “top-down"” approach
is complemented by the “bottom-up” aspects and the involvement of
operating units in identifying operation risks. Management conducts
an internal control self-assessment annually. Department heads have to
complete relevant control self-assessment questionnaires and confirm
to the management that appropriate internal control policies and
procedures have been established and properly complied with.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management and Internal Control Framework Diagram:
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During the year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the
Audit Committee, has reviewed the risk management and internal
controls of each major operating segment of the Group and has
reported its findings to the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit
Committee are satisfied with the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

INSIDE INFORMATION POLICY

The Company has established policy for ensuring that inside information
is disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Senior management
of the corporate affairs and financial control functions of the Group
are delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor the proper
procedures to be observed on the disclosure of inside information.
Access to inside information is at all times confined to relevant senior
management and on “as needed” basis, until proper disclosure or
dissemination of inside information in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Relevant personnels and other professional
parties involved are reminded to preserve confidentiality of the inside
information until it is publicly disclosed.
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WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group has adopted a whistleblowing policy to facilitate employees
and other stakeholders reporting on any suspected misconduct or
malpractice within the Group in confidence and without fear of reprisal
or victimisation. The policy is available on the website of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.
The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NOMINATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The nomination policy sets out the nomination procedures and
the process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for
directorship. The policy is included in the term of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

According to the nomination policy, the Nomination Committee would
select the candidates based on the objective criteria, including without
limitation, age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
and educational qualifications, background and the benefit of
diversity as set out under the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination
Committee would also take into account whether the candidate can
devote sufficient time to the Company, and in case of INEDs, would
also consider the independence requirements under the Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the
nomination policy and will review and recommend any revisions to
the Board for consideration and approval, when necessary, to enhance
effectiveness.

SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

Convening of special general meetings on requisition by shareholders
According to clause 58 of Company’s bye-laws, shareholders holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%)
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (the “Companies Act"”).
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

Shareholder(s) is/are entitled to put forward a proposal (which may
properly be put to the meeting) for consideration at a general meeting
of the Company when (i) the shareholder(s) representing not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights of the Company on the
date of the requisition; or (ii) the requisition is made by not less than
100 members holding shares in the Company.

The requisition specifying the proposal, duly signed by the shareholders
concerned, together with a statement with respect to the matter
referred to in the proposal must be deposited at the registered office
of the Company. The Company would take appropriate actions and
make necessary arrangements, and the shareholders concerned would
be responsible for the expenses incurred in giving effect thereto in
accordance with the requirements under Sections 79 and 80 of the
Companies Act once valid documents are received.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS

We strive to provide quality information to shareholders as well as
our many stakeholders regarding the latest developments whilst
ensuring that relevant information is equally and simultaneously
provided and accessible to all interested parties. The Company has
adopted a Shareholder Communication Policy which provides the
below communication channels to shareholders so as to enable them
to engage actively with the Company and exercise their right as
shareholders in an informed manner.

(1)  Meeting shareholders in annual general meetings (“AGM")
to explain results of the Company and answer questions of
shareholders;

(2) Disseminating corporate information to shareholders according
to the rules and regulations;

(3) Meeting fund managers to promote the business of the Company;
and

(4) Publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company'’s website.

The Company ensures that shareholders’ views are communicated to
the Board. The chairman of the AGM proposes separate resolutions
for each issue to be considered. Members of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee also attend the
AGM to answer questions from shareholders.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that the
Company follows the best corporate governance practices. The notice
of AGM is distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also sets out details of
each proposed resolution and other relevant information as required
under the Listing Rules. The chairman of the AGM exercises his power
under the Company’s bye-laws to put each proposed resolution to
the vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a poll are
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken. Voting results
are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on
the day of the AGM.

Changes to constitutional documents

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no significant change
in the Company’s constitutional documents, and these documents are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Making enquiries to the Board

The Group values feedback from shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Comments and
suggestions to the Board or to the Company are welcome to contact the
Company Secretary.

Designated contact information
Texwinca Holdings Limited

Address 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower II, 223 Hing Fong Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong

Telephone (852) 2610 7116/ (852) 2610 7257

Fax (852) 2233 1116/ (852) 2233 1257

Email IR@texwinca.com
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EY:

To the shareholders of
Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 48 to 172, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BREETEE
Provision for inventories
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMESRNMEERRETEE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had inventories, net of
provision, of HK$2,102,440,000, which comprised of textile
and apparel products. The consumption of inventories
is subject to changing consumer demands and market
trends which increased the level of judgement involved
in estimating inventory provisions. Judgements were
required to assess the appropriate level of provision for
items which may be ultimately obsoleted or sold below
cost as a result of a reduction in customers’ demand. Such
judgements included management’s expectations for
future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
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We obtained an understanding of the inventory
provision policy adopted by management. We also
evaluated whether the inventory provision was
made in accordance with the policy. We examined
management’s estimation regarding the obsolescence
percentage applied based on past experience,
subsequent sales and usage status, and market-specific
considerations.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FARETEEHE)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
2 o BRIOB RN EEREARETEE
Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting We tested the underlying data used by management
judgement and estimates, the provision for inventories to calculate the inventory obsolescence provisions by
and the balance of inventories are included in notes 3, 6 reviewing the inventory ageing analysis and checking,
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements. on a sample basis, the subsequent sales and usage.
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We also tested the resultant calculation by assessing the
calculation criteria and recalculating the provision for
the inventories based on those criteria.

BT E BB EER W I Z S E RSt E LU
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For those items which were identified as slow-moving,
excess or obsolete, we assessed management’s
calculation of the net realisable value by checking to
the latest or subsequent selling prices.
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Recoverability of trade receivables
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As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of trade We tested the controls over the Group’s collection
receivables before loss allowance for impairment of trade procedures and the Group's estimation of expected
receivables amounted to HK$745,677,000 and the loss credit losses. We evaluated the appropriateness of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables amounted the allowance of doubtful debts recognised by test
to HK$33,388,000. checking the historical cash collection trend, subsequent

settlements, ageing analysis of the trade receivables
and considered whether the historical loss rates
were appropriately adjusted based on the current
local economic environment and forward-looking
information by evaluating the correlation of market
information used. We also considered the adequacy of
the Group’s disclosure about the degree of estimation
involved in arriving at the allowance amount.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) BRRETEE(E)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRETEE EPETT RN IEERRENER

During the year, management used a provision matrix

to calculate expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) for trade
receivables. The matrix was initially based on the
Group's historical default rates, and specific factors that
management considered in the estimation of the rates
including the type of customers, ageing of the balances
and recent historical payment patterns. Management
then calibrated the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information, such
as forecasted economic conditions. We focused on this
area because it requires a high level of management’s
judgement and due to the materiality of the amounts
involved.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the provision for
impairment of trade receivables are included in notes 3
and 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREtER

Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2{Ef 3R &5

BAREBTEEE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFF R NAEEBRRTSE

Tax provisions and contingencies

HERERAAHE

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the
“IRD") initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain
subsidiaries of the Group for the years of assessment of
2005/2006 to 2016/2017. Estimating the outcome of the
final tax position and the assessment as to whether a
provision and the amount of such provision should be
recognised are complex and judgmental, and the amounts
involved would be material to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the details about the
tax review are included in notes 3 and 34(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

ZHBEBRNEEE T A ER A RFENABREN RN E
BMBIRRMFE3IR34(b)
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Our audit procedures included making enquires of
the Directors to obtain their view on the status of the
review conducted by the IRD and understanding the
process followed by management to assess the impact
of such review. Our internal tax specialists analysed the
Group’s correspondence with the IRD and considered
management’s assessment of the probability and
outcome of the objections to the estimated assessments
or additional assessments issued by the IRD with
reference to other similar cases. We also assessed
whether the Group’s disclosures detailing the review
conducted by the IRD adequately disclosed the potential
liabilities of the Group.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BREEITER

Impairment assessment of right-of-use assets (“ROU assets”)
RAREEER B ETE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had right-of-use assets
of HK$617,418,000. The Group’s management performed
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets for

identified retail outlets that continued to underperform
by estimating the recoverable amount of their right-
of-use assets based on value in use calculation. An
impairment of approximately HK$35,021,000 has been
recorded to reduce the carrying amounts of certain right-
of-use assets, to their estimated recoverable amounts.
Management considers each retail shop as an individual
cash-generating unit as each shop generates independent
cash flows, which are largely independent of the cash
flows generated by other assets. The Group determines
impairment provision based on the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops. The evaluation process is
inherently subjective, and dependent on a number of
estimates.
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Relevant disclosures about the significant accounting
judgement and estimates and the details about the
impairment assessment of right-of-use assets are included
in notes 3 and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BRRETEE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMFARNAEREFERFSE

Our audit procedures in relation to management'’s
impairment assessment included, among others,
evaluating the Group'’s policies and procedures in
identifying impairment indicators and assessing
management’s significant assumptions adopted, in
particular those relating to the cash flow forecasts
of loss-making retail shops, by reviewing the Group’s
business plan, comparing with the market discount rate
and evaluating the growth rate by comparing to market
data. Our procedures also included a comparison of the
cash flow forecasts with historical data of the Group.
Also, we checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the
Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & Z A R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report & 37 #Z 2{Ef 3R &5

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant

audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence

and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report & 7 & Z A R &

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower,

1 Tim Mei Avenue,

Central, Hong Kong

19 June 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss ZR 5B &

Year ended 31 March 2020 BiF —E - F#F = =+—HIF-FEF

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net
Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

Basic and diluted (HK cents)

A
HERA

EH
HAGWA R Wz
THRER
Hib&EER  F8
B E M

FEAL B & 1 BDR A

BRBEATE R
BiE

AN ERA
S

RAREEREEE
FRIER R

BEAAREBRERS
FREERER

BN ER CEEA)
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2020 2019
—g-%% —E-NnE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BMTF BEF
7,630,306 8,210,053
(5,191,779) (5,607,619)
2,438,527 2,602,434
143,418 207,480
(1,312,117) (1,596,955)
(836,655) (790,423)
(116,239) (42,811)
(68,691) (36,946)
22,733 54,974
270,976 397,753
(101,922) (77,336)
169,054 320,417
169,054 325,246
- (4,829)
169,054 320,417
12.2 23.5




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income ZREZHWA X

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Other comprehensive loss that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Ordinary equity holders of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Year ended 31 March 2020 ##Z —&—

AE R

Hitb2EEE
REZRBBAEH 2 EE
BRENAMSEERE

BERBIIMNCEERESE
ZERERE
AEEHMREEE  BRBUEFE

FEERERA(BE)BE

B
RAREEREEE
FRIER R

FE=J=+—ALFE

2020 2019
=t Bt ¥ e
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T
169,054 320,417
(204,627) (183,312)
(204,627) (183,312)
(35,573) 137,105
(35,573) 167,564
- (30,459)
(35,573) 137,105
EAEREBERAT —Z-TFR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position =& Bt & AR R 3R

31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Investment properties

Prepaid land lease payments

Construction in progress

Trademarks

Investment in an associate

Prepayments

Long term rental deposits

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Long term debt instruments at
amortised cost

Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade receivables

Bills receivable

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Derivative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Bills payable

Other payables and accrued liabilities
Lease liabilities

Derivative financial liabilities
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Tax payable

Total current liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES

*RBEE

Y%  BERRE
EREEE
REYE

AR HBEER
HEIR

[iSEE
REE AT 2 RE
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EHESRS
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SREE

R R T HH A
BE¥IA
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BIRBEE

RBEE

F&

FEW BRR
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ANRIE FTER
Hftb e IR R
BAREFT RSN
TREE
BROBERANEBTE
TTEEREE
BRENRREEEY

BRBEE

REBAE
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Htn BRI R ETTRE
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14
13
14
15
16
17
22
22

18

19
28

20
21
21

22

18
19
23
24

25

26
14
23
27

2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hEF
HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BT T
1,144,341 1,355,312
617,418 -
516,737 565,250
- 12,215

373 528
33,293 33,293
48,288 25,556
17,220 31,428
76,149 86,720
74,776 88,352
99,247 164,239
23,630 18,099
2,651,472 2,380,992
2,102,440 2,171,758
712,289 763,999
197,307 186,501
817,045 863,185
56,946 56,946
37,780 68,536
41 7,057
1,737,012 2,079,982
5,660,860 6,197,964
708,400 824,564
1,472 21,443
526,662 532,849
203,468 -
419 3,334
1,229,533 1,491,113
183,589 192,244
2,853,543 3,065,547
2,807,317 3,132,417
5,458,789 5,513,409




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4= & Bt #& AR R TR

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

2020 2019
—ECZF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEME
Deposit received eWETE 26 2,236 4,000
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 426,064 -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITER 27 - 37,500
Deferred tax liabilities IRIETRIBEE B 28 100,276 94,355
Total non-current liabilities HIERBERS 528,576 135,855
Net assets EEFE 4,930,213 5,377,554
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to ordinary equity FEAAFEEEREEER
holders of the Company
Issued capital BERITIRA 29 69,085 69,085
Reserves 4 30 4,861,128 5,101,215
Proposed final dividend BRARERE 10 - 207,254
Total equity s 4,930,213 5,377,554
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EE EE
Director Director EWE THAE

BAESEERLT —S—2EH @
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4: 8B & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2020 BiF —E - F#F = =+—HIF-FEF

2019
—g-%F —=-hE

HK$°000 HK$000
BETFT EBETT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& FEBREKRE

Profit before tax MREADEF 270,976 397,753
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs MsER 8 68,691 36,946
Share of profit of an associate FE(EEEE N RRF 17 (22,733) (54,974)
Interest income MEWA 5 (63,589) (59,453)
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange INESTEEMTIA
derivative financial instruments AREWREFRE 5 (2,731) (16,540)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment REYEDNRE
properties BB () FHE 6 36,714 (43,256)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - RERREBINE
equipment 6 250,180 257,491
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE
(2019: amortisation of prepaid land (ZZ—NF Bt
lease payments) HER#H) 6 231,444 438
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HENE  RERREER
property, plant and equipment B8 (W) FEE 6 1,737 (307)
Impairment of property, plant and WE  BERZERE
equipment 12 - 3,016
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14 35,021 -
Write-down of inventories FEHMI 6 39,440 30,298
Impairment of trade receivables FEWERFURIE 6 19,889 537
Impairment of debt instruments REEHEAAN
at amortised cost B ITAERE 6 19,608 23,781
884,647 575,730
Increase in inventories FEEm (103,798) (92,387)
Decrease/(increase) in trade FEUR ARSI ZEAEIR D (38 0)
and bills receivables (12,873) 59,098
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, FEMAFIE ~ ST REAER
deposits and other receivables BRFURA,(454m) 45,213 (233,127)
Decrease in an amount due to an associate JE{fEFE A BFIERD - (20)
Decrease in trade and bills payables R R EERD (95,010) (136,161)
Increase in other payables and HibEA IR KR
accrued liabilities FEFtR AL M 43,391 78,888
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 761,570 252,021
Tax paid BABIE (99,076) (107,315)
Net cash flows from operating activities REMBRESRANFE 662,494 144,706

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 428 & HhEFE

Year ended 31 March 2020 BiF —E - F#F = =+— HIF-FEF

2020 2019
—g-%F e

HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ®REZFBHRESRE

Interest received 2RFIR 63,589 59,453
Net proceeds from settlement of HEETESR T BERUETRE

derivative financial instruments 7,085 14,675
Purchases of items of property, plant BEWE  BRERRZHEER

and equipment (143,659) (198,975)
Purchases of items of right-of-use assets BECAEESE (77,910) -
Additions to construction in progress AEEEIRE 15 (380) (37,030)
Net redemption of debt instruments FEE IR SRR Y

at amortised cost BT B S5 76,140 111,768
Net redemption of financial assets at EEZEAREFABREN

fair value through profit or loss SRIEETFRE 13,576 6,762
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEVE BER

property, plant and equipment B3EEIEEON 1,929 14,378
Acquisition of non-controlling interest [l 3 - (70,032)
Decrease/(increase) in long term REHASEESRD (GEM)

rental deposits 6,834 (3,565)
Decrease/(increase) in time and structured AR A=A U ERH>

deposits with original maturity of EHR BT

over three months when acquired WA (38hn) (544,184) 241,329
Dividends received from an associate 2 E A RIRE 17 - 100,000
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing WEEHRESHRAGhd)

activities FEE (596,980) 238,763

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEEBHEHRESRE

Principal portion of lease payments HERKE M5 (227,515) -
New interest-bearing bank borrowings T2 RITER 3,715,103 4,492,208
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BEMSRITER

borrowings (4,014,183) (4,530,250)
Interest paid ERRIE (68,691) (36,946)
Dividends paid 2NRE (345,424) (414,508)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BETERESRHEFE (940,710) (489,496)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESEWRD FH

EQUIVALENTS (875,196) (106,027)
Cash and cash equivalents FHzEeRREEEY

at beginning of year 1,975,982 2,099,699
Foreign exchange adjustments SNETRE (11,958) (17,690)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZBEERBESEEY

AT END OF YEAR 1,088,828 1,975,982

BAESEERLT —S—2EH @



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4: 8B & HhE R

Year ended 31 March 2020 BiF —E - F#F = =+—HIF-FEF

2019
—BoRF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$°000
B FT BT T
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRSEEBWERDIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances BERBITER 24 849,368 389,338
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETZLB=ERREF=
maturity within three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 239,460 1,586,644
Non-pledged time deposits with original RETYB=@ER LR
maturity over three months IR EHFR
when acquired 24 648,184 104,000
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ReERBESZEEY
in the consolidated statement of MEREGRE AR T
financial position 1,737,012 2,079,982
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with B RETMA=@EA L
original maturity over three months EIHR  SIK R EHATE R
when acquired (648,184) (104,000)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RERREZEEY
in the consolidated statement MEFRFERERER
of cash flows 1,088,828 1,975,982
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company
is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of Texwinca Holdings
Limited is located at 16th Floor, Metroplaza Tower Il, 223 Hing
Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

° Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments;

° Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessories;

. Provision of franchise services; and

o Property investment.

Information of subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/

registration registered
and business share capital
MY, BER BERTEE/
EEME BRERAE

Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
HK$1,000
Non-voting
deferred
HK$3,125,000
KERBERAR BB BERA
7B141,0007T &

BREBELERK
78#3,125,0007T

Dongguan Texwinca Textile & PRC/Mainland China HK$2,857,950,000
Garment Limited’
REBKEHERNERAR HEl/HEIARE 78#2,857,950,0007T

Texwinca Enterprises (China) Limited  British Virgin Islands/ US$1
Hong Kong

BREE)RREERAT REELRE /BB (Eyr

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

RAREBER
BEXEEEERADABREIMRLZER
BERAR  ADRZFEMHIEE S Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda ° FEXEEERR AR T EE
WABEBHAEAETR22IFNHNBESESSE
2/E161E o

RAFE » AEBTREEUT R !

o HEH  MUORBMKZIEHRER;

EREESN 2 TERDH ;

o RUEBRERE R

o MERE-

M2 R E R
RABZEEMBLRZFHBENOT

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
AT B ER
ZEHRE TEER
2020 2019

Principal activities

“E-BF SENF

100 100  Sale of finished knitted
fabric and dyed yarn
EEHEAREY
100 100 Production, dyeing

and sale of knitted
fabric and yarn

AR RRY  EHRER

100 100 Investment holding
and trading of machines
REZRREERS

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Texwinca Enterprises Limited

Creative Textile Technology
Company (Guangdong) Limited’
AIRGE(BR)BRAR

Creative Textile Technology
Company (Guangxi) Limited".2

AIREGE (BR)BRAR! 2

Creative Textile Technology
Company Limited

AIRGABRAR

Win Ready Industrial Limited

KEEXARLT

Winson Knitting Factory

Company Limited

Winlife Trading Limited
KETERAE

Place of incorporation/
registration
and business

ML BER
BRI

Hong Kong

BB

PRC/Mainland China

HEREKRE

PRC/Mainland China

HEREKRE

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

RERLHE/ BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
BB

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

RAREEER @)
EARER(E)
Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registered attributable to
share capital the Company Principal activities
BRTEE/ AN
[BE-561 N ZBHE TEER
2020 2019
SESRF CEAF
HK$2 100 100  Provision of management
services
BT RUEBERE
HK$150,000,000 100 100  Production and sale of
garments
7#150,000,0007 MK EH
HK$60,000,000 100 N/A Production and sale of
TEA garments

##60,000,0007T B 2 S
Us$1 100 100  Sale of garments
127 MK ZSHE
Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding

and Non-voting

deferred HK$2
BERABEI0TR BEME

ERFEELERE

BT
Ordinary HK$10 100 100  Property holding

and Non-voting

deferred

HK$1,000,000
BERABEI0TR BEME

ERFEELERE

##1,000,0007T
HK$15,903,100 100 100  Property holding
7##15,903,1007T BENE
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information of subsidiaries (continued)

Baleno Holdings Limited

HeREEERAT

Baleno Kingdom Limited

HeBRARAT

Baleno Hong Kong Limited

HeRERERAF

Guangzhou Friendship
Baleno Co. Ltd.’

BEMEER R R ARAR

Beijing Xing Yu Baleno
Garment & Decoration Co. Ltd’

EREFHRERERHERAF

EBZARGBRAT

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business

MR BER
BEMY

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

REELRE /BB

Hong Kong

BB
Hong Kong
BB

PRC/Mainland China

hE R

PRC/Mainland China

hE R

PRC/Mainland China

hE hEKE

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRAEE/
BRERA

US$20,000

20,000% 7T

HK$10,000

7#1%10,0007T

HK$2

BT

HK$103,800,000

7#1%103,800,0007T

US$500,000

500,000% T

RMB1,000,000

AE#1,000,0007T

AEIREBEER (&)

MERRERE)

Percentage of equity
attributable to
the Company
AT B ER
ZEfHE
2020 2019
“E-EFE ZEhE

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

RAEREARRLF

Principal activities

TERH

Investment holding
and retailing of casual
apparel and accessories
REERRERR
e EE

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERREN 2 ZERDH

Retailing of casual
apparel and accessories

ERN 2 TE

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

BRI TER D #

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERNE 2 TERD#

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories

ERREN 2 ZERDH

—RoBFERH
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1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. ARREEER@®)

Information of subsidiaries (continued) M A mER ()
Place of incorporation/  Issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration registered attributable to
and business share capital the Company Principal activities
MBI BER BRTEE/ AT B ER
EEY [BE-561 N ZBHE TEEH
2020 2019
SESRF CEAF
Tianjin Baleno Co. Ltd.? PRC/Mainland China RMB700,000 100 100  Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessories
REMRERRHERAR HE/HERE AR#700,0007 ERRENTERDH
Huge Growth Corporation’ British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Mainland China
BeERAR RERZHE/HEKE 1% BEME
Silver Kingdom Limited’ British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100 Sub-letting of properties
Taiwan
BEBERAR RBRLHEE/AL 127 HENE
Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Holding of trademarks
Mainland China and provision of
franchise services
AWERAH RBRL#EE/ 127 FEBERRMGEH
B RRE RER%
Successful Channel Corporation’ British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100 100  Property holding
Mainland China
MIREEE RERZHE/HEKE 1% BEME
1 Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm ! WHALKET BB EERS —ZKE
of the Ernst & Young global network. FTETE R AT EI S R o
2 The subsidiary was newly established in the current year. 2 ZIE R AR FERFALIL
All subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. LLEPREME A R HA D REERSS -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in ERAVEADBZHBLAR  EERBEE
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for HAKEAFE 2 EEBREEZERAMST
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the SEEEFH2ETEND c ESRAFIIHM
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion HMEARESERBRIAER

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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2.1

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
certain buildings included in property, plant and equipment,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and derivative
financial assets which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

2.1
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2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to ordinary equity holders of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate,
on the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 19

Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint
Ventures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
HKFRSs has had no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int
27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for all
leases under a single on-balance sheet model to recognise
and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, except
for certain recognition exemptions. Lessor accounting under
HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance
leases using similar principles as in HKAS 17.

HKFRS 16 did not have any significant impact on leases
where the Group is lessor.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application
of 1 April 2019. Under this method, the standard has
been applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of initial adoption recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 April 2019, and
the comparative information for 2019 was not restated
and continued to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
use of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of
the identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition
practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 at the date of initial
application. Contracts that were not identified as leases
under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed.
Therefore, the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has
been applied only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 April 2019.

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(continued)
As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold
land and premises. As a lessee, the Group previously
classified leases as either finance leases or operating leases
based on the assessment of whether the lease transferred
substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies
a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two
elective exemptions for leases of low-value assets (elected
on a lease-by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of
12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected by class of
underlying asset). Instead of recognising rental expenses
under operating leases on a straight-line basis over the
lease term commencing from 1 April 2019, the Group
recognises depreciation (and impairment, if any) of the
right-of-use assets and interest accrued on the outstanding
lease liabilities (as finance costs).

Impact on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 April 2019 were recognised based
on the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1
April 2019 and included in lease liabilities. The right-of-use
assets were measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement
of financial position immediately before 1 April 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the
right-of-use assets separately in the statement of financial
position.

For the leasehold land and buildings (that were held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation)
previously included in investment properties and measured
at fair value, the Group has continued to include them as
investment properties at 1 April 2019. They continue to be
measured at fair value applying HKAS 40.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2 ExBEFERKECEE (&)
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued) (@ (&)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases 1EBEBRN — LI 7 HBAAEHEZH

(continued) B(#E)

Impact on transition (continued) BEFE(E

The Group has used the following elective practical TEER-ZE-NENA—BEREE

expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 April 2019: MR EEAF16RREFEAUTER

BEMNEREESE

- Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases - HRESHAYRERZHIEI2
with a lease term that ends within 12 months from BERKLNEEERAEHES
the date of initial application e

- Using hindsight in determining the lease term where - (HEYNESER KRILEHEENE
the contract contains options to extend/terminate the B ARNERECHER
lease

Financial impact at 1 April 2019 RE-E-NFIA—HZHBEZE

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 at 1 April RIZE-NFHA—BRRMNE BT

2019 was as follows: WMEERF 1K 2HEMT ¢

Increase/
(decrease)
Eh/ORi2)
HK$°000
BT T
Assets EE
Increase in right-of-use assets EREEREEM 678,674
Decrease in property, plant and equipment M BERRERD (31,664)
Decrease in prepaid land lease payments FE T EFUR D (12,652)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEfTFIE 71 & R E M EKRTR S (4,740)
Increase in deferred tax assets EERIEE EIL 10,703
Increase in total assets HEEIEM 640,321
Liabilities aE
Increase in lease liabilities HESEEM 737,721
Decrease in other payables and accruals HitENERR R ETE &R (31,056)
Increase in total liabilities BEBdEmM 706,665
Decrease in retained profits RBERIR D (66,344)

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

Financial impact at 1 April 2019 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 reconciled to the
operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 are as
follows:

2.2 EHBERENEECEEH)

(#)
REZFE-NFOH—-HZHBZE(E
RZZE-NENA—H Zé‘H‘EETEEﬂR\‘
TE-NFZRA=T-HZREHER
EHERWT

(a)

HK$°000
BEFT

Operating lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 R-B-hE=A=+—HZ
TEHERE 933,687
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases and W %Iﬁﬂﬂiaf&ﬂﬁﬁ &Y
those leases with a remaining lease term ended REZZZ2F= ﬁ '|' =i
on or before 31 March 2020 2 ARSI Z BRI (20,514)
913,173
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate R-ZE—hFMNA—BMEFY
as at 1 April 2019 BB BRI 4.46%
Lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019 R-EB-hFHA-—BZHEAE 737,721
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income (b) FEEERIBRERREED) BB

taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS
12, nor does it specifically include requirements relating
to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax
treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses (i)
whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(iii) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and
circumstances. Upon adoption of the interpretation, the
Group has assessed its tax positions and concluded that the
interpretation did not have material financial impact to the
financial statements of the Group.
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2.3

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business’
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 (2011) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material'
and HKAS 8

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-F#=H=4+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other events
that occur on or after the date of first application, the Group will
not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address the
effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial reporting.
The amendments provide temporary reliefs which enable
hedge accounting to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark.
In addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 April 2020. Early application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share of
the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of
an associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units)
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Business combinations and goodwiill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial assets at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end
of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties) the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and
is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset and certain
financial assets is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued
asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that person's

family and that person:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity; and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of
property, plant and equipment is classified as held for sale, it is
not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

The asset revaluation reserve arising from the revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is realised and transferred directly
to retained profits on a systematic basis, as the corresponding
asset is used by the Group. The amount realised is the difference
between the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount
of the asset and the depreciation based on the asset’s original
cost. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit,
on an individual asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged
to profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to profit or loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to retained
profits is made for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the depreciation
based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve realised in
respect of previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

For a transfer from owner-occupied properties to investment
properties, the related revaluation surplus is retained in the
asset reserve and remains there until the subsequent disposal
or retirement of the property, when it is transferred from the
revaluation surplus to retained profits.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off

the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its

residual value over its estimated useful life. The estimated useful
lives used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25 years or over the remaining
lease terms, whichever is
shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease terms

Plant and machinery 10 to 20 years

Furniture, fixtures and office 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles and yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents plant and machinery under
construction, which are stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
(2019: leasehold property under an operating lease) which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date
of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be indefinite.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level
and are not amortised. The useful life of a trademark with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. For fabric, yarn and garments, cost is determined on a
weighted average basis and, for work in progress and finished
goods, cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. For casual apparel and
accessories, cost is determined on a weighted average basis
and includes all costs of purchases and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal or to
make the sale.

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@) Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. The
cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located. Right-
of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives
of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years or over the remaining lease
terms, whichever is shorter
Premises Over the remaining lease terms

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

31 March 2020 —E—-F#=H=+—H
24 FESHBERIBE®)

HE(A=Z2-NFEHA-BRER) (&)

FEEBAEA ()

(@) [EREEE
EREEEREERNKG BRI (AER
EEAHERZBH) - ERAEEER
BAREMRFTIFEREMRERSE
T8 UYHEMEHNAEHEREF
HAEE - ERREEE 2R ABECER
ZHEEEEE CEEZNREER
A R RRR B2 AT 2 HERK
HREWEZEAHERE - EREE
EREEMKZEENT EERER
ME R BEEIRESARHRITE -

HELTi S0FHIREFT 2 HE
FH - BERBREE
B3 BHT 2HEFH

W EEEZ AR EHENEREGE
BEAEBRIIARRTITREBERE -
AlZEEERBNEAFRIER
o

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(@]

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group
and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of premises (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leases (applicable from 1 April 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as an
operating lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases (applicable before 1 April 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to the statement of profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements, the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the land and
buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group's business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows
will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not
held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit
or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that
would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial
asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.
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31 March 2020 —E-F#=H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables and contract assets that contain a significant
financing component and lease receivables, the Group chooses
as its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or
° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a “pass-through” arrangement,
it evaluates, if and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or loans and
borrowings, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, bills
payable, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accrued liabilities, an amount due to an associate, derivative
financial liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains
or losses on liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit risk which
are presented in other comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit or loss
does not include any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its
foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values where
there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
subsidy relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and
time deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
cash at banks, which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a loyalty programme in its retailing operation
which allows customers to accumulate award credits when they
purchase products from the Group.

The consideration received is allocated between the products sold
and the award credits issued, with the consideration allocated
to the award credits being equal to their fair value. Fair value is
determined by applying statistical techniques.

The fair value of the award credits issued is deferred and
recognised as revenue when the award credits are redeemed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a)

(b)

(@]

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to
return the goods within a specified period, the expected
value method is used to estimate the goods that will not be
returned because this method best predicts the amount of
variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled.
The requirements in HKFRS 15 on constraining estimates of
variable consideration are applied in order to determine
the amount of variable consideration that can be included
in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is
recognised.

Rendering of services
Revenue from the provision of services is recognised upon
the rendering of the relevant services.

Provision of franchise and royalty services

Revenue from the provision of franchise and royalty services
is recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the

effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly

discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life

of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

Dividends

Final and special dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they have
been approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s bye-laws grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of
its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate overseas
are required to participate in central pension schemes operated
by the local municipal governments. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension schemes.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is
also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
an associate are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period
and their statements of profit or loss are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year. The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or leased
out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made on
an individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not qualify as an
investment property.

3.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-F#=H=4+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
The Group has several lease contracts that include extension
and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether or not to exercise the option to renew or
terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that
create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal
or termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change
in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to
exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate
(e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or
significant customisation to the leased asset).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Such estimates involve
consideration of the possibility and outcome of the objections to
the estimated assessment or additional assessment issued by the
tax authority with reference to similar cases. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in
the cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test. The information about the
impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets are disclosed in note 12 and note 14 to the financial
statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to
recognised tax losses at 31 March 2020 was HK$ 12,444,000 (2019:
HK$18,099,000). Further details are contained in note 28 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of trademarks

The Group determines whether trademarks with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the trademarks are related. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. Further details are contained in note 16 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-F#=H=4+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group has assessed the useful lives of previously recognised
trademarks. As a result of this assessment, the trademarks were
classified as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. This
conclusion is supported by the fact that the Group’s trademark
legal rights are capable of being renewed indefinitely at
insignificant cost and therefore are perpetual in duration,
related to well known and long established fashion brands, and
based on future financial performance of the Group, they are
expected to generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets, the Group re-evaluates the useful
lives of the trademarks each year to determine whether events or
circumstances continue to support the view of the indefinite useful
lives of the trademarks. The carrying amount of trademarks at 31
March 2020 was HK$33,293,000 (2019: HK$33,293,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition and location (or subject to different
leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences;
(ii) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii)
independent valuations.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 March 2020
was HK$516,737,000 (2019: HK$565,250,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement
and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value is made
based on the estimated net realisable value of inventories.
The assessment of the required write-down amount involves
management'’s judgement and estimates, based on management’s
expectations for future sales net of estimated selling expenses.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in future is different
from the original estimate, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying amounts of the inventories and the write-down
charge/write-back amount in the period in which such estimate
has been changed. The carrying amount of inventories at 31
March 2020 was HK$2,102,440,000 (2019: HK$2,171,758,000).

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns. The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the
matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions
are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The carrying amount of trade receivables at
31 March 2020 was HK$712,289,000 (2019: HK$763,999,000). The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-F#=H=4+—H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term,
and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter
into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available and is required to make certain entity-
specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit
rating).
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on their products and services and has three
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and
garments segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessories segment; and

() the "others” segment comprises, principally, the provision
of franchise services and property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss) which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with
the Group's profit before tax except interest income, non-lease
related finance costs and share of profit of an associate, are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits, an investment in an
associate and deferred tax assets as these assets are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

4,

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

4, BEIEER#®E)
SEEZERERR S EBN2BETS
SECERTISEETE

Production,
dyeing and sale of Retailing and
knitted fabric,yamand  distribution of casual
garments apparel and accessories Others Eliminations Consolidated
8% BOREKZ ERE 12
E#RER ZERSH A H &8
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
SES8F CRF SRS BN CRCRF TN CRCRE SR CR0RF SIf
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BEFL  BEFn  BEFr BETr BEFn BEFn BETn BETr BRFn BEFa
Segment revenue: AEUA:
Sales to external customers EFNREF 4918578 4,759,007 2,709,338 3,448,176 2,390 2,870 - - 7630306 8,210,053
Intersegment sales NEEHE 53,005 6,050 - - 8,164 6,439 (61,169)  (12489) - -
Other revenue Rl A 43,097 69,909 3,169 9,264 37,544 76,655 (3,981) (7,801) 79,829 148,027
5014680 4834966 2,712,507 3,457,440 48,098 85,964 (65,150) (20290) 7,710,135 8,358,080
Segment results PEEE 539,526 354,047 (316,042)  (110,328) (1,353) 76,553 - - 222,131 320272
Reconciliation: ETil
Interest income F2HA 63,589 59,453
Finance costs BB ER
(excluding interest on (FafEREREHS)
|ease liabilities) (37477)  (36,946)
Share of profit of an associate gl 2,73 54,974
Profit before tax RBAEA 0976 397,753
Income tax expense #E (101,922)  (77,336)
Profit for the year REERR 169,054 320,417
Segment assets TEEE 5309955 483629 2,597,492 2,284,540 825,549 604390 (1,380,226)  (880,569) 7,352,770 6,844,657
Reconciliation: Tl
Investment in an associate REEARRE 48288 25556
Unallocated assets RAMEE 911,274 1,708,743
Total assets BEE 8,312,332 8,578,956
Segment liabilities HEEE 859,799 808860 2,017,708 1,100,878 34,087 19,668 (1,042,873) (543,215 1,868,721 1,386,191
Reconciliation: il
Unallocated liabilities FEEE 1,513,398 1815211
Total liabilities ek 338,119 3,201,402
Other segment information: BthaEER
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 178497 171862 303,127 86,067 - - - - 481624 257929
Capital expenditure* BRERH* 75917 160,066 146,032 75,939 - - - - 221,949 236,005
Write-down of inventories &M 11306 13840 2813 16458 - - - - 3040 30298
Impairment of trade receivables  FEWERFUHE - - 19,889 537 - - - - 19,889 537
Impairment of right-of-use assets ~ FREEENE - - 350 - - - - - 3501 -
Net fair value loss/(gain) REMEARERE/ ()
on investment properties BE - - - - 36,714 (43,256) - - 36,714 (43,25)
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and * BARMESHOEREYE  BMERZE - 7£

BIRRASERRAEEENLHEG -

equipment, construction in progress and the land portion classified
under right-of-use assets.
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31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. BEIEER @)
Geographical information i & R
The following table presents geographical revenue and non- TRAAEBEZE-Z-ZE=A=1+—-HAK
current assets information of the Group for the years ended 31 —E-NF=ZA=Zt+—-HULEFEZMIGERAR
March 2020 and 31 March 2019: FRBEEER

USA Mainland China Japan Hong Kong Others Eliminations Consolidated
8 REKKE Bx B i i #e
020 2019 00 219 2020 2019 000 2019 00 019 020 2019 00 019

CE0%F CE-nF CBC%F CE-AF CT0%F CE-AF C3C%F CT-AF C30%F C3-AF C30%F S0 C3C%EF Ik
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
AEFT BT BEFT BEFT BT BEFT BEFT BT BEFT BEFT BEFrT BEFL BEFL BEFT

Revenue fromexternal ~~ $EEFUA

Customers 2636804 2072160 3059365 3965165 758480 996342 951378 1004145 24219 172,241 - - 7630306 8,210,053
Non-current assets FnagE - - 1604266 1,464,251 - - 08179 644110 - 18097 (134775 (133776) 2377670 2023582
The Group's geographical revenue and non-current assets AEEMFHBARFABEEEN(TEER
information, excluding long-term rental deposits, long-term HESE: RERCEERANEETA -
debt instruments at amortised cost, financial assets at fair value BRARBEFABENEREERELEREE
through profit or loss and deferred tax assets, are based on the BE) D RIRETISREEZMERDHE -

locations of the markets and assets, respectively.

Information about major customers FEEFZER
No single external customer (2019: Nil) contributed to more than RER BEBE—IIREF(ZZE—NF &)
10% of the Group's revenue during the year. AR AL SR B AR A10% A E -

BAESEERLT —S—2EH @
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. A~ B AR s
Revenue from contracts with customers REHEEFITLNEHHKRA
An analysis of the revenue is as follows: WAMDIT
2020 2019
—EZEF —Z-hEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Sale of goods HEER 7,618,673 8,192,968
Rendering of services RURTE 9,657 14,742
Franchise and royalty income IR REFIRA 1,976 2,343
7,630,306 8,210,053
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i)  DHFRAEH
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE_Z-_ZHF=F=+—HLEFE

Rendering of Franchise
Sale of yarndyeing and royalty
Types of goods or services goods services income Total

RHRY  KEEEER
EmkBBESR HEER BR#% HRA aF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BETFT BETFT

Segments ik
Production, dyeing and  #H&i4 ~ B RAKZ
sale of knitted fabricand E#5R% &3

yarn and garments 4,909,335 9,657 - 4,918,992
Retailing and distribution {ERK& &2

of casual apparel FERDH

and accessories 2,709,338 - 1,976 2,711,314
Total revenue from ZEEWRAEET

customers 7,618,673 9,657 1,976 7,630,306

Geographical markets i 5

Hong Kong BB 951,378 - - 951,378
Mainland China EEIPN S 3,047,732 9,657 1,976 3,059,365
United States of America [ 2,636,804 - - 2,636,804
Japan SP:N 758,480 - - 758,480
Others Hith 224,279 - - 224,279
Total revenue from EEIRAEET

customers 7,618,673 9,657 1,976 7,630,306
Timing of revenue WA FE R B

recognition

At a point in time AE—FEL 7,618,673 9,657 - 7,628,330

Over time RE—FR - - 1,976 1,976
Total revenue from EEWRAEET

customers 7,618,673 9,657 1,976 7,630,306
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5.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2019

Types of goods or services

EmRRBES

5.

Sale of
goods

HEER
HK$°000
BT T

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

WA~ B AR W @)

REEEFTIHELINBA (F)

()  PIRRAEH(E)
BE-Z-AF=A=+—-ALEE

Franchise
and royalty
income
FRER
HRWA
HK$000
BT

Rendering of
yarn dyeing
services
RERD
BR#%
HK$000
BT

Total
A
=N
HK$°000
BEFT

Segments H
Production, dyeing and  #F#7 ~ B REKZ

sale of knitted fabric, EHRER

yarn and garments 4,744,792 14,215 - 4,759,007
Retailing and ERRR &2

distribution of casual SERDEH

apparel and

accessories 3,448,176 - 2,343 3,450,519
Others Hith - 527 - 527
Total revenue from EFEWRAEE

customers 8,192,968 14,742 2,343 8,210,053
Geographical markets i 5
Hong Kong &8 1,004,145 - - 1,004,145
Mainland China AR AP 3,948,080 14,742 2,343 3,965,165
United States of America %[l 2,072,160 - - 2,072,160
Japan SN 996,342 - - 996,342
Others Hith 172,241 - - 172,241
Total revenue from EFRAEE

customers 8,192,968 14,742 2,343 8,210,053
Timing of revenue WA B R

recognition

At a point in time AR —B5F2 8,192,968 14,215 - 8,207,183

Over time AE— R - 527 2,343 2,870
Total revenue from EFEWRAE

customers 8,192,968 14,742 2,343 8,210,053

EREREBRAE —Z-ZFRH



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5 WA > HtRA R WK #)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REEFFITLNEHNHRA (E)
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (continued) () DHRUAER ()
The following table shows the amounts of revenue T RET AR B AR R R & 2
recognised in the current reporting period that were et AEHEaBEZWASEE

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the
reporting period:

2020 2019
SE L —2-hE

HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT

Revenue recognised that was included REH » THIEERIBA

in the contract liabilities at the BEREHN
beginning of the year: aEd:
Sale of goods HEER 29,086 16,160
Franchise income SRR I - 2,847
Sale of goods - HEER —EF LT3

Customer loyalty programmes 6,659 1,875

35,745 20,882
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon acceptance of
the products by the customers with immediate payment.
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit and on cash. The credit period is generally within 90
days.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
when services are rendered and payment is generally due
upon completion of services and customer acceptance,
except for some customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Franchise and royalty income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering the services. Franchise contracts are for periods
of one to two years.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019 are as
follows:

Within one year —FR
More than one year ZR—4E

The amount of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations expected to be recognised as
revenue after one year relate to franchise services, of which
the performance obligations are to be satisfied within two
years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated
to the remaining performance obligations are expected to
be recognised as revenue within one year. The amounts
disclosed above do not include variable consideration which
is constrained.

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

5. WA~ Eb AR WS @)
RERESTINEHNORA (F)

(ii)

JERIEIF
REBEBNETEENT

HEE
BREFERFEIERIL AR
BRET - ARBHEEFNESKAE
ZELBHRRE - R —MRABIOKRA °

IEIRTS

BREEARMRB 2SEHEIE
17 - MR — RN IR T B R P 1A
BRETXMN - HEEDEF —REFELN

=
Koo

BFAAEE REFLA
BHREEARMRBEERERIE
17 BEEEBERTAREHRBEANE
IR - HHEEEHNNFHENT—Z
M e

RZBZZBE=A=+—-HRKRZZ-A
E=ZA=1+—0 BRXZEKREEH
THEHEME(RETREMDKRET) M
T

2020 2019
—s-%f —E—hE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT
2,085 408
1,799 306
3,884 714

FHERBE - FRERBKRAZRT
BHEESREARMFRETETZE
FRERE - MARMBRTEYNEER
BER-—FAERBBA - EXHWEZ

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued) 5 WA > HtRA R WK #)
Other income and gains HAth Wt A R Wz
2020 2019
—EC-BF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Interest income FIEUA 63,589 59,453
Net fair value gains on foreign exchange INESTE SR I A A RENE
derivative financial instruments (note 23) FEE(MEE23) 2,731 16,540
Gross rental income from investment REMELLHERS
property operating leases ON -t 22,762 25,945
Compensation from suppliers R ERESHEREE
for defective goods 3,696 13,213
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BRER
plant and equipment oEEE N - 307
Government subsidies BB 2,233 6,402
Net fair value gains on investment REMFERRERE
properties FEE - 43,256
Sundry income HEEUA 48,407 42,364
143,418 207,480
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. ERBLATEF
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBRAERSIRR (k) :
(crediting):
2020 2019
ZBEF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT
Cost of inventories sold? EEEM A 5,191,779 5,607,619
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)% « BERRENE 12 250,180 257,491
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
(2019: amortisation of prepaid (ZZ-N& Bt
land lease payments) HEREH) 14(a), 14(b) 231,444 438
Employee benefit expenses, including EERAHEL
directors’ and senior management's BEESNSRERAE
remuneration (note 7): e (mz7) -
Wages, salaries and other allowances I5 - HFeRHEMmER 1,213,552 1,313,338
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RINBFRIFTEIER 7,497 7,161
1,221,049 1,320,499
Lease payments not included in the HER(TEEREEERE K8
measurement of |ease liabilities/minimum HETZHEHEHRZE)
lease payments under operating leases 117,772 409,878
Contingent rents under operating leases REHET 2HEHE 213,485 289,645
331,257 699,523
Auditor’s remuneration R E 2,700 2,800
Foreign exchange differences, net R €] (4,062) (25,605)
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment REVEDIAEEE/(KF)FE
properties* 13 36,714 (43,256)
Gross rental income from investment property ~ REYELLHERS U B5E*
operating leases* 14 (22,762) (25,945)
Less: direct operating expenses (including B EEEERX(BRERER
repair and maintenance) arising from HEER)REWERENE
rental earning investment properties 2,243 2,030
Net rental income HeEWAFE (20,519) (23,915)
Write-down of inventories beactive 39,440 30,298
Impairment of trade receivables FEURERFR(E 21 19,889 537
Impairment on debt instruments REBHERANER T ARE
at amortised cost 19 19,608 23,781
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #)¥% - BERRERE 12 - 3,016
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 14(b) 35,021 -
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEME BERREER
items of property, plant and equipment* B8/ (k) FaEr 1,737 (307)
# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$571,125,000 (2019: # EEEYZHEATEIEEHASTHE - fTER

HK$597,196,000) of staff costs, depreciation and lease payments
which are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
above for each of these types of expenses.

* These items are included in the “Other operating expenses,
net”/”Other income and gains” on the face of the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

B BI571,125,0007T (= FE— T F | B
597,196,0007T ) IR 5 FEE FHRIAB B 1%
g o

ZEBAEFAGE R R Rt EEE
o EEL TEMKAR Koz J5# o
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 7. EENESHEEASHMSRENES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID SMES

EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration EEME

Directors’ remuneration paid during the year, disclosed pursuant BEWBE - FBDFEME383(1)()

to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c¢) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

(b) » ORMERLBREESFEER) R
PIE=F - AEEXNESWE 2 WBEWT

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,

is as follows:

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BHF T
Fees: we
Executive directors HITES 30 30
Independent non-executive directors BIHHITES 1,530 1,455
1,560 1,485
Other emoluments: HAibEN S -
Executive directors: HITES
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMRFERSER 24,017 26,121
Performance related bonuses* RIBHAFEAT* 24,530 30,450
Retirement benefit scheme contribution BRIKER T B 36 36
48,583 56,607
50,143 58,092
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to discretionary * ARARTEEZBFETHEABALR LGS EER

FFrEZ BTN E T B EERBIES
RBH AL o ENEGLEEZ REHHTE
ABRELFEZEFREREBRE

performance payments not exceeding a certain percentage of the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company. The
performance related bonuses paid to each director was determined

with reference to the performance of the director and the results of EE -
the Group of last year.
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUHBITEE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REREXFFBILIFPTESE2HES
during the year were as follows: mE

2020 2019
bt 223 —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Au Son Yiu B 510 485
Cheng Shu Wing e 510 485
Law Brian Chung Nin EfPE 510 485
1,530 1,455

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent RER > TE(CE-AF  8|)OBZ

non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil).

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

(b)

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

7. EENSHEEAEMERANUES

REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID SIES (7)
EMPLOYEES (continued)
Directors’ remuneration (continued) EEME(E)
Executive directors (b)) HITEE
Salaries, LETEET
allowances  Performance benefit
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions remuneration
e RER B3] RIEF
ik FREEF B HE [i5 HehE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BT BT BT BT BT
2020 ZEIEF
Poon Bun Chak BWE 10 14,071 13,940 - 28,021
Poon Ho Tak ELE 10 2,424 3,990 18 6,442
Ting Kit Chung THR 10 7,522 6,600 18 14,150
30 24,017 24,530 36 48,613
2019 —E-hE
Poon Bun Chak EE 10 15,479 18,780 - 34,269
Poon Ho Tak BEE 10 2,617 3,990 18 6,635
Ting Kit Chung THAE 10 8,025 7,680 18 15,733
30 26,121 30,450 36 56,637

As the Group was affected by the outbreak of COVID-19,
Mr. Poon Bun Chak voluntarily agreed to waive his salary of
HK$1,489,600 (2019: Nil) during the year.

After the year ended and up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon
Ho Tak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung voluntarily agreed to waive
their salaries of HK$2,289,600, HK$140,000 and HK$345,000,
respectively.

Save as disclosed above, there was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year or after the year end.

HARAEEZ19OFETRESEEN
g8, BEWELERERNRZEENE
H¥$8%1,489,600T(=F—NF :
) o
RELAZREBEZATHREZZERD
BWESE  BEEEERTHRAEL
SRZEEREETF I ABY
2,289,600 7T * & M 140,000 T & & HE
345,0007T °

BREXFTREE  WBBERFAR

FRENEIRERETAHENZ
e
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

7. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
REMUNERATION AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (continued)

Senior management’s remuneration
Senior management’s remuneration paid for the year was within

the following bands:

7.

EENEfEEAEMERANVNES
FiNES ()

EREBAEMS
TEEEEXNESREBAEMEBR TIIEH
:

2020 2019
—ECEF “E-RE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A#
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 7#£2,500,001 7T Z8%3,000,0007T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 743,500,001 £ E%4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 77,000,001 7T £ E%7,500,0007T - 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 79,000,001 7T £ 78%9,500,0007T 1 -
3 3

Five highest paid employees AU REHHES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2019: three), details of whose remuneration are set out
in “Directors’ remuneration” above. Details of the remuneration
for the year of the remaining two (2019: two) highest paid
employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind

Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIKER 2R

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

o RENEFREREA

rERANESFMEEEE=N(Z2—N
FZES HEMFBOERALNIE
EME IR - BT (ZZE—NTF : MK
SHMES (HX3EARDTES) WARE E 5
FEWT

2020 2019
—ECEF —Z2-hF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT
12,796 11,099

36 36

12,832 11,135

FEECXNESBESHNESHEBNT
I gaE

Number of employees

EEAE
2020
—ECEF
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 783,500,001 7T £ % %4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7&1£7,000,0017C £ %7,500,0007T - 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 7&1£9,000,0017T £ 8 %9,500,0007T 1 -
2 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts RITERREZFE
Interest on lease liabilities HEAERE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group
which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime effective from the year of assessment 2018/2019. The first
HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at
8.25% and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

8.

Current — Hong Kong and Mainland China: & — & & R EARE

Charge for the year REFEE

Underprovision in prior years TEEREBETR

Deferred (note 28) B (HzE28)
Total tax charge for the year REERBET

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

MBER
2020 2019
—s-%f e I
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT
37,477 36,946
31,214 -
68,691 36,946

HE
EBANEHEREARE BRI B3R
TRAUABIE16.5% (ZF—NF © 16.5%)12HE
B EAEE-RMBARRN > ZAAH
BEREAN-Z—)\/ ZE-NEREEL
MHFIEHBMRFNEE - ZHEBARES
#£2,000,000 7T HJ FE SR B F 12 8.25% M Bi =
HEL O BT WEERBIRE AR 16.5% M =&
o EHMBENERREHE  DREARSE
EEBEEFETIERZRITHENE -

2020 2019
—ECZF —Z2-hnEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
90,833 68,823
692 1

10,397 8,512
101,922 77,336
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. BiE@®)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BREARABRREWE AR MREREEE 2R
tax using the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the BADRA AR EER Bt E 2 BB EAE
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at ERERHREHEATOT -

the effective tax rates are as follows:

2020 2019
—EC-BF —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Profit before tax RRBE A A 270,976 397,753
Tax at the statutory tax rates R ERERNTIE 12,604 36,304
Adjustments in respect of current PMEFENEPHRERARE
tax of previous years 692 1
Profits and losses attributable to an associate FE{GE#E A FiEH (3,751) (9,071)
Income not subject to tax BAEHF ZW]A (51,140) (55,539)
Expenses not deductible for tax RAER B R 2E R 48,629 76,420
Effect of withholding tax on the FhAN S B B A B AT R
distributable profits of the Group’s EANFEINRENSE
PRC subsidiaries 4,965 (5,429)
Unrecognised tax losses RIEABIEEE 88,121 29,854
Tax losses utilised from previous periods EEABTHEzHIEREIE (685) (3,055)
Others Hith 2,487 7,851
Total tax charge for the year REEHIBBEE 101,922 77,336
The share of tax credit attributable to an associate amounting BE A Bk /2 R B TE B 43 5 7B MK 13,267,000 7T
to HK$13,267,000 (2019: HK$55,268,000) is included in “Share of (ZZE—N%5 : B¥55,268,0007T) Bt ALRE
profit of an associate “ in the consolidated statement of profit or BRR [ EAEHE ARGER R -
loss.
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10. DIVIDENDS

1.

Interim dividend — HK10.0 cents

Proposed final dividend — Nil BRI E — &

(2019: HK15.0 cents per ordinary share) (ZZ—N5F  SREBR

FBHE15.01l)

The Board does not propose the payment of final dividend for the
year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 1,381,696,104 (2019: 1,381,696,104) in issue during the
year.

The Company had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

10.

1.

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

KRS

2020 2019
—z-%f e

HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BETT

FRERE - BREBRRER10.01L
(2019: HK15.0 cents) per ordinary share (Z=E—NF : B¥15.01L)

138,170 207,254
- 207,254
138,170 414,508

ESEXFETERRBERYPRE -

BEAAREERSENEESRAERN

EXSRBANSEDNRAQAIEBESMA
ERLEZEEEFRNZFRNERITEER
1,381,696, 1041 (= F— 7L : 1,381,696,104
) Z IS I BB &

RAARBE-Z-EF=A=t—-HR=Z
—NEZA=T-RLFERLECHITHE
EASIHHENEBRR -

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BEREE

Leasehold
Buildings improvements

By HERTRE

HK$'000
Vi

HK$'000
BEFT

Plant and
machinery

HEREH,
HK$'000
BEFT

Furniture,
fixtures

and office
equipment
i REBR
WAZRR
HK$'000
AEFI

Motor
vehicles
and yacht

RERER
HK$'000
8T

Total

Ak
=1

HK$'000
B8

31 March 2020 ZECEF-A=1+-H
At 31 March 2019: RZZ-NE=A=1+-R:
Cost or valuation BASEE 1,249,009 921,777 3,229,967 265,535 104,032 5,770,320
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (756,431) (861,398)  (2,497,897) (217,957) (81,325) (4,415,008)
Net carrying amount REEE 492,578 60,379 732,070 47,578 22,707 1,355,312
At31 March 2019, net of RZB-NE=A=1-H"
accumulated depreciation and ENREHTERAE
impairment 492,578 60,379 732,070 47,578 22,707 1,355,312
Effect of adoption of HKFRS 16 FREBIRREER
AL ded 7 (31,664) - - - - (31,664)
At 1 April 2019 (restated) RZB-NEMNA—A(EF) 460,914 60,379 732,070 47,578 22,707 1,323,648
Additions = 16,821 50,049 54,904 16,258 5,627 143,659
Disposals HE (602) (223) (1,987) (2,369) - (5,181)
Depreciation provided during FRREER )
the year (note 6) (44,269) (65,660) (115,575) (15,014) (9,662) (250,180)
Transfer from construction ERREIRWHS)
in progress (note 15) 528 - - - - 528
Transfer from investment ERREMEWEH3)
properties (note 13) 12,486 - - - - 12,486
Foreign exchange adjustments ERE (30,472) (2,154) (44,683) (2,365) (945) (80,619)
At 31 March 2020, net of accumulated R=ZE-ZF=H=+-0
depreciation and impairment ENRESHTERAE 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,727 1,144,341
At 31 March 2020: R-B-BF=A=+-H:
Cost or valuation BASGE 1,151,977 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,462,180
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (736,571) (842,477)  (2,438,560) (215,726) (84,505) (4,317,839)
Net carrying amount REFE 415,406 42,391 624,729 44,088 17,721 1,144,341
Analysis of cost or valuation: AR EE -
At cost A 1,138,375 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,448,578
At 31 March 1992 valuation R=ANZE=ZA=1-H
ffE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,151,977 884,868 3,063,289 259,814 102,232 5,462,180
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31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 12. Y% BERSZE®E)

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures Motor
land and Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
buildings improvements machinery  equipment and yacht Total

ik i RER
1#ERT RERTRE HEREE  BOERE  REREE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E¥Fr  EEFn BRfn BETx BFFn EETx

31 March 2019 “E-NE=ZA=t+-H
At 1 April 2018: RZZ-NEMA-H:
Cost or valuation BASHE 1,306,998 937,112 3,253,763 257,652 103,287 5,858,812
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERAE
impairment (752,613) (841,199) (2,571,886) (228,380) (78,261) (4,472,339)
Net carrying amount REFE 554,385 95,913 681,877 29,272 25,026 1,386,473

At 1 April 2018, net of accumulated  R=ZB-N\EMA-H -

depreciation and impairment BHREFHTERAE 554,385 95913 681,877 29272 25,026 1,386,473
Additions AE 2,023 46,670 99,274 41,75 9,252 198,975
Disposals HE - (278) @777 (8,749) (267) (14,071)
Depreciation provided during FRITEERE(HiL6)

the year (note 6) (43,958) (75,784) (115,539) (12,516) (9,694) (257,491)
Impairment HE - (2,298) - (534) (184) (3,016)
Transfer from construction BRRRIB(H:Z15)

in progress (note 15) 7,923 - 109,493 - - 117,416
Foreign exchange adjustments MERE (27,795) (3,844) (38,258) (1,651) (1,426) (72,974)

At 31 March 2019, net of accumulated R=Z-AE=A=+-R -

depreciation and impairment BNREGHTERAE 492,578 60,379 732,070 47,578 22,707 1,355,312
At 31 March 2019; RZB-AE=F=1-8:
Cost or valuation RAREE 1,249,009 0,777 3,229,967 265,535 104032 5770320
Accumulated depreciation ZERAE
and impairment (756,431) (861,398) (2,497,897) (217,957) (81,325  (4,415,008)
Net carrying amount REFE 492,578 60,379 732,070 47,578 2,701 1,355312
Analysis of cost or valuation: RSB :
At cost A 1,235,407 91,777 3,229,967 265,535 104032  5756,718
At 31 March 1992 valuation R=AN=EZA=1-A
fhiE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,249,009 91,777 3,229,967 265,535 104,032 5770320

BAESEERLT —S—2EH @
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12.

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
During the year, a building with a carrying amount of
HK$12,486,000 (2019: Nil) was transferred from investment
properties to property, plant and equipment since the date of
change in use. Such building was revalued at the date of change
in use based on a valuation performed by the directors with
reference to the value of adjacent properties at an aggregate
open market value of HK$12,486,000 based on its existing use.

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were revalued
in 1992 by independent professionally qualified valuers. Since
1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s leasehold land and
buildings had been carried out as the Group has relied upon the
exemption granted under the transitional provisions in paragraph
80A of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, from the
requirement to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant
and equipment which were stated at valuation at that time. Had
such leasehold land and buildings been carried at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have
been approximately HK$1,843,000 (2019: HK$2,279,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

REFREE
REVER AERE(B8)FHE

Carrying amount at beginning of year
Net fair value gain/(loss) on investment

properties (note 6) (Kizte)

Transfer to owner-occupied EEETHRNEMNF12)
properties (note 12)

Foreign exchange adjustments SNERE

Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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13.

M BERSEE @)

RSER - —IREEABY12,486,0007T (=
T-NF \|BINWEFRREAREARHAR
BEMEEAYE  BEREE - ZEFERNE
EZRMAMELZAREARRESAER
ZEBEEGZ AR MSEEE 12,486,000
5o

HHFPEEL M REFER - AN ZFLE
VEEMAEMETERS c AEBBE—ANZ
Fi WEHEBEETHRETEE-—SE
FiEE AAEEREBGHENE165HEY
# - FERZERSAERBEMEKR  BRB
HE L EBEEARNYE  BERREES
RERBIEEM - MZEHE T HRETFIRE
ERARBTINENER  HIREAEBEENASB
#£1,843,000Tc (= — N F © #B%2,279,000
TT) e

REWE
2020 2019
= —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
EBETT BETT
565,250 524,400
(36,714) 43,256
(12,486) -
687 (2,406)
516,737 565,250
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties with carrying values of HK$516,737,000
(2019: HK$507,990,000) and nil (2019: HK$44,774,000) are
situated in Hong Kong and Taiwan, respectively. The Group’s
investment properties consist of 12 (2019: 12) industrial properties
and 1 (2019: 1) commercial property in Hong Kong and Taiwan.
In the prior year, a residential property with a carrying value of
HK$12,486,000 was situated in Mainland China. The directors of
the Company have determined that the investment properties
consist of three classes of assets, i.e., commercial, industrial and
residential, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of each

property.

The investment properties in Hong Kong were revalued on 31
March 2020 based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan
& Associates, independent professionally qualified valuer. The
investment property in Taiwan was revalued on 31 March 2020
based on a valuation performed by the directors with reference to
the value of adjacent properties and rental income. Each year, the
Company'’s board of directors decides to appoint which external
valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group’s properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s financial controller has discussions with
the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation results
once a year when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included
in note 14 to the financial statements.

13.
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REWZE #)

IREE A8%516,737,000 T (ZZE— N EF :

7 %507,990,0007T) R E(=ZZE— ni-%%
44,774,0007T) IREMES RIVREER A
o REEREYEBFEVNEEREEZ12
BAIEZF(ZE-LE : @) R1EFEE
F(ZE—AF @) - REFE > —uRFE
ReE 2 FEYEIREEAE12,486,0007T °
RESREYEIME - BEEAR  &AA7
EERVREYERE=-EEEEMNAR B
MEETF TERFREEYE -

RIZZEFE=ZA=1—-H UREBNKRE
VEBHBEREXER 2B BMERITET
Eft - URBENRENERESN-ZT-F
F=ZR=t—-HARSRIPOYEBEERE
EWAETHE - SFEARRZESERER
AN EMESHARER 2 REWEETIH
BEE - HEEMIREERAT SR B
B BUMRERESERRE - RNEE Y
BREMGERRRGESREFE —ANER
FEMBRRBGEGEMETH®

REMEDUEEAVATE=E » FAER
BN RMEE14 -
EAEREBERAT —Z-TFR
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 13. REWXE#®)
Fair value hierarchy AREZER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRHAEPREEREVEN DI AETESR

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020
R-B-EF=A=1+—HBWAAEBETERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX BARARA

RE R ATEEMN BEN

TG HNHRE BWASE AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%5—#%) (E=#) (=) k)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000
EBYFT BYFT BETFT BT

Recurring fair value BT ERE N
measurement for: ARERTE

Commercial property BEEF - - - -
Industrial properties TETF - - 516,737 516,737

- - 516,737 516,737

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019
REZB—NFE=ZA=+—HNAREFELRA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BX BRARA

AER ATERERHY BN

TiZHRE i A SR A SR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—1) (B=8) (=) I
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT B FT BUFT B F T

Recurring fair value BUATEREEMEN
measurement for: AREFTE

Commercial property BEETF - - 44,774 44,774
Industrial properties T¥EF - - 507,990 507,990
Residential property (E2=2L)/E S - 12,486 - 12,486

- 12,486 552,764 565,250

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2018
Net gain from fair value adjustments

SNEFHE

Foreign exchange adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2019
and at 1 April 2019
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments

SNEFE

Foreign exchange adjustments

Carrying amount at 31 March 2020

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and
the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Valuation techniques

fhER %

EXFUBENBAZE

Significant unobservable inputs

13.

REZB-N\FONA—-BEREE
DA EHBWE TR

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

REWE #)
DRBEERAF)
ER SRR RHLEFMALE
HEMNEE FEAESREAREL (=

RZB-—NAF=ZA=+—-HRK
—E-NFRA-HREE
DRERBWE (F5E)FHE

Commercial Industrial
property properties
[EEZ- £ ITHEF
HK$000 HK$°000
BHF T BHEFT

43,608 467,535

3,572 40,455

(2,406) -

44,774 507,990

(45,461) 8,747

687 -

HEREE - 516,737

LT BIREVEGEMBNGEERERERE
AHERIBE

Industrial properties Income approach
located in Hong Kong:

UREBNIRET:  W&EE

Residential property
located in Mainland
China:

Direct comparison
method

URPEARNESNE . BERYLE

Passing rent HK$6.5 to HK$22.0 HK$6.5 to HK$22.0
(per sq.ft. and per month)

REHS(EFIRRES) BHE6.5TE 2207 BEESTEBE2.0T

Market rent HK$7.9 to HK$24.0 HK$11.5 to HK$24.0
(per sq.ft. and per month)

mEHe(FFIRRES) BIET7.9TEB24.07T BE115TEBE24.0T

Term yield 1.2% to 4.1% 1.2% t0 4.8%

HEkEE

Market yield 3.0% t0 4.0% 3.0% t0 4.0%

miEhEE

Unit market price (per sq.ft.) N/A HK$6,940 to HK$8,115

BENTHEEFEIR) THEA  B¥6,940nEBES 15T

BAEREBRAT —ZT-ZFRH
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

13. BEWXE#®)
ARBEER ()

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs

fHER % BEXATRENBARE

Income approach Passing rent

(per sq.ft. and per month)
REEE(FFEREES)
Market rent

(per sq.ft.and per month)
mEHEE(FFIREES)
Term yield
HEkEE
Market yield
TEE
Estimated rental value

Commercial property
located in Taiwan:

TREENEXRET . WEE

Discounted cash flow
approach (per sq.ft. and per month)
BRASREE RS BEEFIRRES)
Rent growth (p.a.)
HERRE(GF)
Long term vacancy rate
Discount rate
BRE

Income approach
Under the income approach, fair value is estimated on the basis
of capitalisation of existing rental income.

The passing rentals of the investment properties are assessed and
capitalised at term yield expected by investors for this type of
properties. The passing rents are assessed with reference to the
tenancy agreement of the investment properties. The term yield,
which is the capitalisation rate adopted, is made with reference to
the yields derived from analysing the leasing and sale transactions
of properties and adjusted to take account of the valuers’
knowledge of the passing expectation from property investors to
reflect factors specific to the Group’s investment properties.

The key inputs were the passing rent and the term yield, which
a significant increase/decrease in the passing rent in isolation
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties and a significant increase/decrease in
the term yield in isolation would result in a significant decrease/
increase in the fair value of the investment properties.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

N/A HK$4.2 to HK$13.0

TER BELITER13.07T
N/A HK$6.7 to HK§10.5

TER BH6.TTEBE105T

N/A 29.0% t0 33.0%
TER

N/A 36.0% to 40.0%
TER

N/A HK$4.2 to HK$13.0

TER B4 2T EBE13.0T

N/A 1.1%
TER

N/A 0.0% to0 5.0%
TER

N/A 3.2%
TER

Woad %
REWEE  DAERREESRABRRESR
AYELREETT fhwT -

REMENRBRS R BN EREERHHN
MmSWERFELRAER - BETIUREY
EMFEHOBSETIML - ZBRERBAAN
ERERR - DBEBSMENUYFEEEREE
RESWAEEFE - W LEMHYERE
EHMISTHEHNRBELHRERE - URRAREE
REMENBHEE -

FTEHARBLARAESREBRER - MR
BHESEBAEEM B BEBRENE
DABEREZ, WD - TaEIE S REE
KB, WL - SEHBRENEL AEKRIE
B AN o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Direct comparison method

In the prior year, the fair value of the investment properties was
determined using the comparison approach based on market
comparables of similar properties and with adjustments made
on factors such as location, size, age, condition and aspect of the
properties. The weighted average range of the adjusted price per
square foot was HK$6,940 to HK$8,115.

A significant increase/decrease in the adjusted price per square
foot would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair
value of the investment properties

Discounted cash flow approach

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value.
This method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the
projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of the
income stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally
separately determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is
a characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent
and commission costs and other operating and management
expenses. The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the
projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value
and the market rent growth rate per annum in isolation would
result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
long term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation would
result in a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the
investment properties. Generally, a change in the assumption
made for the estimated rental value is accompanied by a
directionally similar change in the rent growth per annum and
the discount rate and an opposite change in the long term
vacancy rate.

13.
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REWE #)

ARBEZRAE)

B L

REF  REVENDRENEAEATSE
AL E Y E LS L AT - WAREYE
WALE - KN 2R RRREREEEEE
R SV HRABRAERNINETHEES
56,9407 B8, 1157 ©

BYHRABRERNBEZ RN EE
EMENDABEBERIBD -

;R

HRE 2 mE %

RBRRREREZE » AAEMGTHERAEE

ESanPEERZMERNANEREENERER
(BERHEBEERRLEE)ETHE - &F%

BREERERN—ERRESREMNTER - ™

50T 4 1Y BE IR 2= 4% pE AR A ) E“IE%MLELXE@

VEEEFENKRERNWRE - REWGEEZRE
BEREBREBTRRRE -

RERENFERARRAZEIRLENEE
BEDHFNESERZ  HAVEERERE
H ERSBHESHRE - BENSER

BRmSTHRYEERN—EFE)ZE -
EHRERELRLBWRENREE - TAEKE

A WiREK - HEREB - #EER - REHN

REEARAEMEENERER - Z—EHTE
e FE - EREFTRENRA SR

%%JHEE@#@%E BRI ERE -

A EESEERTSHEESFRRREFHAER
ﬂﬂ/iﬂw\ﬁﬁgz‘ﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁﬁ)ﬁﬂ'ﬁfmﬂﬂ/
B o REPZERRREREEFHAEEM R
9ﬁq%"‘ﬁlhﬁ%%ﬂﬁ’Aﬁ:ﬁﬂ'mﬂi/fmm °
—RME - AT HESEEFLNRERNED
SERHSFRRERBARHAEMUS B
FREHRRMZEZHR @B
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

14. LEASES 14. HE

The Group as a lessee AEEERFEBAA

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold land AEEHREREFEDPHEANSEHEL A
and premises used in its operations. Lump sum payments were BFNHEESRE - EAIEET — IR AL
made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with BEERIBAENGRESHER 202
lease periods of 20 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be SOEMMEE T I BEAERENT - BFH
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of premises E-REB2ZESFWHER - B—LEET
generally have lease terms between 2 and 25 years. There are BHERWHEEEE  TESE—DTH -

several lease contracts that include variable lease payments, which
are further discussed below.

(a)  Prepaid land lease payments (before 1 April 2019) (@) BLtHHEF(=ZF—NFMHA—H
A7)
2019
—E-hEF
HK$000
BT T
Carrying amount at beginning of year REDIREE 13,516
Amortised during the year (note 6) FNEEE(HFe) (438)
Foreign exchange adjustments IMERE (426)
Carrying amount at end of year RERKREE 12,652
Less: current portion included in prepayments, & : SRENEBHEIENFENEIE
deposits and other receivables e R EMEWRRA (437)
Non-current portion FRB D 12,215
(b)  Right-of-use assets (b) ZFAREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and EENFEAEEEREAERFRAS BN
the movements during the year are as follows: T

Land Premises Total
T it EE &%

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BEFT BT BEFT

As at 1 April 2019 (note 2.2(a)) R=ZE—NF

WA —AB (kat2.2(a)) 44,316 634,358 678,674
Additions iz 77,910 222,582 300,492
Depreciation (note 6) wE(Kze6) (3,759) (227,685) (231,444)
Impairment loss recognised SRR ZHEEE
(note 6) (Ktzte6) - (35,021) (35,021)
Lease modification HEBKR - (69,660) (69,660)
Exchange realignment & 5 AR (508) (25,115) (25,623)
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZBZEF=H
=+—H 117,959 499,459 617,418

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

(c)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s management identified
certain retail shops of its retailing and distribution of
casual apparel and accessory business which continued to
underperform; and estimated the recoverable amounts
of the corresponding right-of-use assets. Based on these
estimates, an impairment loss of HK$35,021,000 was
recognised to write-down the carrying amounts of these
items of right-of-use assets to their recoverable amount
of approximately HK$460,442,000 as at 31 March 2020.
The recoverable amount of the items of right-of-use assets
is determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets covering
a period of the remaining lease terms. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection is ranged from 10.5% to
13.5%.

Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements
during the year are as follows:

Carrying amount at 1 April RUA—AREE
New leases HEE

Accretion of interest BERE
Payments (NEN

Lease modification HEEH
Exchange realignment [E 5 R

Carrying amount at 31 March

Analysed into: DT
Current portion S HERER 4D
Non-current portion REAER (D

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note
40 to the financial statements.

R=A=+—BRHEE

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

14. #BE @)

REBERRBEA(E)

(b) (EFAREEEE)
R-ZZE-ZF=A=+—H  £EEE
BEEHERRGYZSERDHE
BHEA T ETRRBETENTES
o M AAEEAREENTWRE
S8  REZEMT  CERIMES
1878 %535,021,000 T © Ui ELEE R
BEEEENRAEMRZ_—Z=-F
FZRA=+—HWAKRESELNBE
460,442,0007T ° E A EEEE WA
Bk S BERREFEAEETEREN
DEABENTERERRERENE
B ZRERBEIENTERGAE
HRMVEITETEE - EARRESRETEA
KT R EE £10.5% %2 13.5% °

(c) HEERE
HESBREERZBHNT -

2020
—g-%x

HK$’000
BEToT
737,721

222,582

31,214
(258,729)
(71,174)
(32,082)

629,532

203,468

426,064

629,532

HESEEIH A 2R B RRHEE40
E -

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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14. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(d)

(e)

(7

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEEEANE
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FRAEEENE

Expense relating to short-term leases and
other leases with remaining lease terms
ended on or before 31 March 2020

Impairment of right-of-use assets

14.

Variable lease payments not included AR#EERTERE

in the measurement of lease liabilities

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Variable lease payments

The Group leased a number of the retail stores and units in
shopping malls which contain variable lease payment terms
that are based on the Group’s turnover generated from
the retail stores and the units in the shopping malls. There
are also minimum annual base rental arrangements for
these leases. The amounts of the fixed and variable lease
payments recognised in profit or loss for the current year
for these leases are HK$258,729,000 and HK$213,485,000
respectively.

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 March 2020. The future undiscounted
lease payments for these non-cancellable lease contracts are
HK$25,140,000 within one year and HK$63,562,000 after
one year but within five years.

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in notes 33(c)
to the financial statements.
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MBS RS

EHESENFET

HE =)
REBERRBA(E)
(d) RIERPEIAHEHEY LT -

Eﬁiﬁ,ﬁﬁ?ﬂ%&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%’fﬁﬂﬁ"
—ECRFZA=+T-HRZARL
ZHMEERENE M

EREEERE

()

2020
—v—vqi

HK$’000
BT T
31,214
231,444

117,772
35,021

213,485

628,936

54 A0 = 2p
o] Z#FHE 5

FEBEBYTOARETHSZEBER
BAEERZEEHNBY P LONE
u%@%%ga B9 T 30 B RROR AR

TEEMNEN - ELEHERER
1EEE’J$FE$$Hé§£}3F E‘tb$ﬁ‘*ﬁ$
FENBESTRIANE TN T2
MIED J%lﬁm258,729,00071:ﬂ/§°§§
213,485,0007T °

AEER-ZE-ZF=A=+—HEH
KREBNEEHRESRE - SLT A
WHESRNARKRITREERE—F
N 578 %525,140,000T - —FREBRE
A 58%63,562,0007T °

HERSREABECHER T KRERM
#533(c) °
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14. LEASES (continued) 14.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 13) consisting
of 12 industrial properties in Hong Kong under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$22,762,000 (2019: HK$25,945,000), details of which are
included in note 6 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivables
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

31 March 2020 —E=ZF#=H=+—H

HE®)

KREBERHEA
AEERBECEAERHBAEBETNRE BN
NREIFEEFREYEHTE13) - BOK
AND—MERAFEBARIBSRREEAR
FEBTSREMEEASAE - KEENRE
RERZHES WA 5BE22,762,000T(=F
— L : #%25,945,00070) @ FHEBERGH
ARG o

R-ZZZEF=ZA=1+—-R0  FEEREBEHREHR
MR 2 A HSEEE 2 RRGEEWAEE
MR ABERDT

2020 2019
bt 222 —E-hEF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT BT T
Within one year R—FR 14,595 27,723
In the second to fifth years, inclusive R ZELF(BREERWE) 15,416 22,084
30,011 49,807
15. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 15. EEIRE

2020 2019
t St 222 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
At beginning of year RELD 528 88,475
Additions NE 380 37,030

Transfer to property, plant and EEYE - BERRZE
equipment (note 12) (KizF12) (528) (117,416)
Foreign exchange adjustments YN AR (7) (7,561)
At end of year REXR 373 528

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

16. TRADEMARKS 16. BE

@®

BA K AREE

Cost and carrying amount

Trademarks are regarded as having indefinite useful lives because
the products with the trademarks are expected to generate net
cash flows indefinitely.

Impairment testing of trademarks with indefinite useful lives
Trademarks are allocated to the retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and accessories cash-generating unit for
impairment testing.

The value of trademarks with indefinite useful lives is assessed
annually by using the relief-from royalty method calculated
based on a five-year cash flow projection approved by senior
management. The fair value of the trademarks was equal to the
future royalty savings resulting from ownership of the assets.

The key assumptions, royalty savings rate, sales annual growth
rate and discount rate used in the annual impairment testing of
trademarks with indefinite useful lives is as follows:

Royalty savings rate 1.5%
Sales annual growth rate 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate 11.5%-14.5%
The sales annual growth rate is the average annual growth rate
over the forecast period. It is based on past performance and
management’s expectations of market development.

The royalty savings rate used is with reference to comparable
intangible assets and the related royalty rates that the buyers

typically pay for the use of such assets.

The discount rates used are before tax and reflect specific risks
relating to the relevant units.

The values assigned to key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

2020 2019
e

SE L
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT

33,293 33,293

BRRESEAESTERFHRERNZS
BHERUESHELERESFRA

ERFERFHBROBENR
BARRIREERRGN 2 ZERTHEREE
FENERERR

BESERATHEENEESFUENELEE
BESREEASHENTFREREBMET -
BRZAAERSERERZEERSHE KRR
HRE -

ARESEREEEFERENRNEER
RWSAEGEE  HEFRERRARED
T

BREHER 1.5%
HEFHERE 2.0%
BiATAEIE = 11.5%-14.5%

FRANEEFERRATRNBBNFIFER
= WHERUERRREEEETSEREN
FaH

FRANBENEHE R ZRER-—REMZE
EEMXNNALELEERBBENER -
FRAMBER R AT R BRAABIE (L AV AS E R

PEEFRERNVEERIMEEARFE -2 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

BIEEEFR

Share of net assets

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

Place of
Particulars of
issued shares held

RANERTKROER W

incorporation
and business

R AR 3 K%

31 March 2020 —E=ZF#=H=+—H

17. REFERTIZRE

2020 2019

— 7 —= ﬂ—: :ﬁ—ﬂi

HK$°000 HK$’000

EBETFT BT

48,288 25,556
BEARZENWT :

Percentage

of ownership
interest
attributable

to the Group
FEEELES
Elrig:s

Principal activity

FTEXK

Megawell Industrial Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong/Mainland 50  Dormant
("Megawell”) China and Vietnam
BESHAARAB(EED EER &/ HEAHER B TES

The Group's shareholding in Megawell comprises equity shares
held through a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Megawell is a dormant company and is accounted for using the

FEERBENSREEEBALA -—2EH
EMBARSARASER - BER-FEDHL
R IRAERENDR ©

equity method.

The following table illustrates the financial information of the

Group's associate that is not material:

Share of the associate’s profit and total

comprehensive income for the year
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment
in the the associate
Dividend received

B ER -
2020
—g-%%
HK$°000
BT
REEEEHE AT
RRR2ERA 22,733
REENBE AT 2
REEEE 48,288
BRRE _

TREJEAEEMSLTEANBLE AR 2

2019
=E-NF
HK$°000
BEFTT

54,974

25,556
100,000

RAEREARRLF

—RoBFERH
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

18. BAAEFABENEREE

PROFIT OR LOSS

2020
—g-gf

——

HK$000
EBETT

BAREFARENERERE

2019
=E-NF
HK$°000
BHF T

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Unlisted investments, at fair value

Less: non-current portion

B IERBNER D

Current portion TRENEBLD

The above unlisted investments as at 31 March 2020 and 2019
were investment products issued by financial institutions. They
were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest.

19. DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

FLETWRE  BORE

131,722 145,298
(74,776) (88,352)
56,946 56,946

RE-BZEER-ZE-AF=A=t—-H: Lt
ML HRERSHEBRITZREER - H
REZHEERNEHRERTERELERFE
XY BUtZERLAIERRAAETAE
BNEREE -

19. REBERFTNEBITA

Debt instruments at amortised cost
- Hong Kong
— Elsewhere

Less: accumulated impairment

Less: non-current portion

Current portion

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T JBHF T

BEBHERINER IR
—-&E 89,874 123,235
—HhihE 100,850 143,629
190,724 266,864
W BRORE (53,697) (34,089)
137,027 232,775
R IERENED (99,247) (164,239)
TEIERD 37,780 68,536

The debt instruments at amortised cost represents investments in
listed debt instruments, with fixed interest return.

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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20.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)
The investments had an aggregate nominal value of
HK$191,202,000 (2019: HK$268,253,000), and bore interest at
rates ranging from 3.54% to 8.75% per annum (2019: 3.38% to
8.75% per annum). The amortised cost of the debt instruments at
amortised cost was computed as the amount initially recognised
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest rate method of any
difference between the initially recognised amount and the
maturity amount.

The movements in provision for impairment of debt instruments
at amortised are as follows:

19.

At beginning of year RELD
Impairment losses recognised (nhote 6) REEBER (K7e)
At end of year RER

Included in the above provision for impairment of debt
instruments at amortised cost is provision for certain individually
impaired investments of HK$53,697,000 (2019: HK$34,089,000)
with carrying amounts before provision of HK$64,246,000 (2019:
HK$57,242,000).

These impaired investments relate to debtors that were in
financial difficulties and were in default in interest and principal
payments and the entire balance is expected to be irrecoverable.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials Bt
Work in progress &M
Finished goods SR
Consumables ERYE

20.

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

REEERANEX T Ew)
ZERENETEER B 191,202,000 T
(ZB—RF : B%268,253,0007T) @ FF
EH354%F8.75% (ZFE—HF :3.38% 2
8.75%) - MEHMEAANEE LA 2 #H
RAKFTEDRDEERNSEREACEEN
A& BINLESEEEABRARLENRE
REFHEINP A SE - ZHEMN AT H S
§ °

BEOBERANER TARERENEZEM
T

2020 2019
—s-%f e I
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT
34,089 10,308
19,608 23,781
53,697 34,089

ELMZEBERANER T ARERETE
JEE TE @RI R E IR E B 153,697,000 7T
(ZZ—hE : 8%34,089,0005t) » HEHEA
BRE{E A 78%64,246,000 T (ZZE—hE : 8
#57,242,0007) ©

ZECERBRENREZERERAREN
BRERLBEERTEEFNERATHE - Ef
ZEEFREERD -

FE
2020 2019
=g  —2-AnE
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T JBHT T
770.218 836,771
111,441 103,833
1,093,001 1,105,303
127,780 125,851
2,102,440 2,171,758
BAESEERLT —S—2EH @
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEWRBRFX
Impairment A
Bills receivable EREE

Bills receivable mainly represent bills issued by reputable banks
in Hong Kong and Mainland China. An impairment analysis is
performed at each reporting date by considering the probability
of default, ranged from 0% to 0.07% (2019: 0% to 0.07%) which
was insignificant.

Payment terms for the Group’s customers mainly range from
“cash before delivery” to “90 days from the date of invoice”. A
significant portion of the customers trades with the Group under
documentary credit terms. The Group seeks to maintain strict
credit control on its outstanding receivables and has a policy to
manage its credit risk. Since the Group'’s trade receivables relate to
a large number of customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance of HK$33,388,000 (2019: HK$13,499,000), is as follows:

Within 90 days
Over 90 days

90H®R
90H £
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21.

FE W R ) R B
2020 2019
SE L —2-hE
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT
745,677 777,498
(33,388) (13,499)
712,289 763,999
197,307 186,501

BURZETRIEREERTEREEERFZ
RITHRHZRE - BBREEEN 2N
ERERESAWMETREIMRERI%E
0.07% (=ZZ—NF : 0% Z£0.07%) 2 EHE -
HYAREK -

REBEFIERMAIEREE IZ[#FA
BHI90K | - EPAEE KA 2 S ARER
EEETRS - ARBYHRRFIAER —ER
EEFGENEEREEERR - ARAEEER
BERERRZEF  ALABEEANEESH
R o A EEE I E R WORR AR EEM
ERRSEMREAERZRE - BRIRTAE
M. o

REBERR - RBERABRIBRISRBEBE
33,388,000t (=& — L5 © ##13,499,000
TO) B2 EBERA AR AT

2020 2019

=t 23 14 e i
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEFT BEFT
670,617 648,562
41,672 115,437
712,289 763,999
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year RELD
Impairment losses (note 6) WIEEE (f7te6)
At end of year RER

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating,
coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance).
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables are written off if past due for more than one
year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:

As at 31 March 2020

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

FEWERR R B (%)
FEWEBRZOREIS A BENEBMT

2020 2019
—s-%f e I
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BETT
13,499 12,962
19,889 537
33,388 13,499

RERE BB AR EERETRED 7
SAEBRMEEEE - BERDREAFERN
BEER 2 ZERF 2 MHAR 2B B & (8
ZiEERYE - ERER - FFERNRFRUK
FRARIEAEXERARRz2BZHEE D)
FTE - WIHFTERRIARMEER - 82
REMEERNRE A HMRBESER - BN
RARREERTRAMES2EERTERE
B —RME - EZRUIRRMHBNBE—F
R BAZRAEFBITEE BT LM -

T XEFIE R T E A KB 2 FRURK
ARREFEERRBCER

BREEH 2 TERDH

R-ZB-EF=A=+—H

Past due
2
Less than
Current 90 days
=8 DR0K
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEER 0.013% 0.033% 81.5% 20.7%
Gross carrying amount IREZE
(HK$000) (GBETTT) 90,153 30,047 40,948 161,148
Expected credit losses EHEEEE
(HK$°000) (BB FT) (12) (10) (33,366) (33,388)

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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21.

22.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
Retail and distribution of casual apparel and accessories:
(continued)

As at 31 March 2019

21.

AL EYSES 1))
ERREGYBERHL : (#)

R=ZB-NE=A=+—H

Past due
2
Less than Over
Current 90 days 90 days
=1 DRI0K HiBI0K
Expected credit loss rate FEHEEEER 0.01% 0.012% 37.3% 6.3%
Gross carrying amount IREAEBYFTT)
(HK$’000) 103,110 74,108 36,107 213,325
Expected credit losses FEHEERE
(HK$°000) (BEFT) (10) 9) (13,480) (13,499)

Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric, yarn and garments:

As at 31 March 2020, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables measured at amortised cost for this segment was
HK$584,529,000 (2019: HK$564,173,000), of which the expected
credit loss is minimal.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

o IERBED

Less: non-current portion:

- long-term prepayments —REFEARIE
- long-term rental deposits -REESES
Current portion RENE D

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits
and deposits with suppliers. In the situation where no comparable
companies with credit ratings can be identified, expected credit
losses are estimated by applying a loss rate approach with
reference to the historical loss record. The loss rate is adjusted to
reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The loss rate applied as at 31 March
2020 and 2019 was insignificant.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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AN » AT RHEAmRBERR

A - ORI ZEHREBER

NR-ZE-ZZEF=ZA=+—HB ko EMN
REBERANEREREAAEBERE
#584,529000 T (ZZE— h & @ B
564,173,0007t) » EHEHEEHEEMTR
g o

BNRIE - A &R A EWERR

2020
i

2019
—E-NF
HK$°000
BT

HK$°000
BETT

910,414 981,333
(17,220) (31,428)
(76,149) (86,720)
817,045 863,185

ReRHEMERERREEEAERERATMH
EEzZs  RELZBAEEEETRZTL
HBEARZERT  BSEELEETEER
BIEERUETRBEESE - ZBERETH
B UL AR E AR T B T R SR AR AR S (2N A )
ZHER c RZEZER-E-NF=ZR=1+—
BEAZEBERETERK -
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Forward currency contracts: RHIESH
Assets EE
Liabilities afs

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of non-
hedging currency derivatives amounting to HK$2,731,000 (2019:
HK$16,540,000) were credited to the statement of profit or loss
during the year.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERBITFR
R H=EAREHz
EHER

Cash and bank balances

Time deposits with original
maturity within three months
when acquired

Time deposits with original
maturity of over three months
when acquired

EHEN

At the end of the reporting period, the above balances include
cash and bank balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") of
HK$457,122,000 (2019: HK$201,248,000). In the prior year, the
Group had time deposits denominated in RMB of HK$74,575,000.

RMB in Mainland China is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time and structured deposits are made for periods
less than or equal to one year depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time and structured deposit rates. The bank balances,
time and structured deposits are placed with creditworthy banks.

RATZB=EA U LRI

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

PTESRIA
2020 2019
=t 23 14 = SR
HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BT
41 7,057
419 3,334

AEBECHRITZEFAFEHPETERNE
HIEANUEEHEERER - RER - R
BEERPMEMIFEAFIIETEEBENA R
{EE% A8%2,731,000T (=2 —hF : BE
16,540,0007T) °

RERRTEEY
2020 2019
—g-%F e
HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT BETT
849,368 389,338
239,460 1,586,644
648,184 104,000
1,737,012 2,079,982

R|BEHR > ULEHREEUARBEEZR
& RIRITIF R B H457,122,000t (== —H
F : #%201,248,0007T) - R EF - AEEHE
ANREHEE 2 EHRFREE74,575,0007T °

ARBRAERETEERLIREMER
REHEARENINETERIRI R EE - EER
NEEERTE  AEEEEEBEREETIH
EERZRITIEARBRBBHME -

RITERREE ARITERFRREVZE 2=
FE - EHREBUEERZFRBH —FRU
T BFAREEANBREFRME  WEE
EHESREBEFRFIRRRFIL - RITE
RREMREBUEERENEERIFHIRIT -

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. ENERX

Trade payables

FEABRSR

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

2020
—EoRF

HK$’000
BT
708,400

2019
—E-hEF
HK$000
BT T
824,564

REEHR - RBEAH BN RRIRE DT

LU

2020 2019

—B-%F —E-hfF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 90 days 90HA 690,687 791,729
Over 90 days 90B M L 17,713 32,835
708,400 824,564

RIREHR - BEARRABFMER —RBIOK

At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are non-

interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day terms. HYBRER o

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HtENERAKREFEE
2020 2019
bt 222 —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT BT
Other payables H R 227,000 194,880
Deferred government grant IEFE B EED 22 1,468
Accrued liabilities EEaE 269,695 304,756
Contract liabilities aNaE (a) 32,181 35,745
528,898 536,849
Less: non-current portion A IEREI D (2,236) (4,000)
Current portion ENER D 526,662 532,849

Other payables and certain accrued liabilities are non-interest-
bearing and have an average term of three months.

HitEN RTINS TRTEEREME - BF
HERMAB=EA -

@ TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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27.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26.

(continued)
Note:

(a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
are as follows:

31 March 2020 =E=F#=F=+—F
Hitb B AR BT R E @)
Mz -

(a) R-CBEZZFEF=ZF=+—AR=-ZF—NEF=
A=+—HZaHEEFBUT -

Advances received from customers W E AT
- Sales of goods —HHEED
Customer loyalty programmes FEFERHGE

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to deliver
goods and customer loyalty programme reward points. The decrease
in contract liabilities in the year ended 31 March 2020 was mainly
due to the decrease in short-term advances received from customers
in relation to the sales of goods and decrease in customer loyalty
programme reward points.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27.
2020
—E-EZF

Effective

ENNTE]
interest rate Maturity HK$'000

BREFE
(%) BETT

Current E
Bank loans-  SR{TER - 1.45-2.89 Within 1 year 1,229,533
unsecured EIHE or on demand

R—FRFRER

1,229,533
Non-current  3ERE
Bank loans-  $R{TER— - - -
unsecured bt
1,229,533

2020 2019
—F-FF =F-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
BETT BYTFT
26,639 29,086
5,542 6,659
32,181 35,745

EHEEEEBXTE RN Z T
BREFLHiERER D - REE-F
CEFEZHA=t-HUFERAEHEEF
B FEARGHERGEEF WA
HEHEEENREF EHilEcRE
EZBEAEMPTE

M SERITER

2019
—ZT-NE

Effective

annual
interest rate Maturity HK$000

BRERI=
(%) ZI#A BEFT

1.92-3.90 Within 1 year 1,491,113
or on demand

R—FRARZER

1,491,113

1.78-2.70 April 2020 to 37,500
May 2020
—ZCZFNAE
—Z-ZFAEA

37,500

1,528,613

BAESEERLT —S—2EH @
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Analysed into: DR -
Bank loans repayable:
Within one year or on demand

In the second year F-FR

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, all bank borrowings are

in Hong Kong dollars, RMB or United States dollars.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group’s banking
facilities were supported by corporate guarantees from the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

RATRABR -
R—ENIEER

27. fESRITER®)

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
HK$000

BT T

HK$’000
BT

1,229,533 1,491,113
- 37,500
1,229,533 1,528,613

REBZEF=A=+-HRZZF-NF=A
=+—H - FERITERDHBE - ARBH

ES

REBZEF=A=+-HRZZF-HhHF=A
=t —H  ARENRITEENHAAAFIRA
EOMIB D R REER o
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. EZEFIE
Deferred tax liabilities EESEAE

Withholding tax on the
distributable profits of ~ Depreciation allowance in
the Group's PRC excess of related
subsidiaries depreciation
BN EHE AT BHABRERRAN
j RERHEA Htth
2020 2019 2020 2019
SR CT-NF ZBoEF ZB-NE CB-RFE ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000
Bifr  BEfr  BEFr BEFn BEFx BEFr BMFr BETx
At beginning of year RET 88,868 94,297 (721) (721) 6,208 6,977 94,355 100,553
Deferred tax charged/ FRRERRT
(credited) to the B/ (L)t
statement of profitor loss  EERIE(H:29)
during the year (note 9) 4,965 (5.429) - - 956 (769) 5921 (6,198)
At end of year RER 93,833 88,868 (721) (721) 7,164 6,208 100,276 94,355
Deferred tax asset BEFIEEE

Unrealised losses

Loss available for

on derivative offsetting against Right-of-use assets
financial instruments future taxable profits and lease liabilities
fTESRMIA WREESEA% EREEER
FERER ERBERINES HEafE &t
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZBCEE “Z-hE ZBCEF “E-NE ZBCEE —EZ-NF ZBCEE N
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETn  BETr  BETn EETn BEFn BETn EEFn BT
At beginning of year RED (W%
(as originally presented) BISRARR) - 9,505 18000 23304 - - 18099 32,809
Effect of adoption of FAEBHERSED
HKFRS 16 oo FE - - - - 10,703 - 10,703 -
At beginning of year (restated) RE#(E3]) - 9,505 18,099 23,304 10,703 - 28,802 32,809
Deferred tax credited/ FRRBERPNL/
(charged) to the (B MIEL SR
statement of profit or loss (F73t9)
during the year (note 9) 63 (9,505) (4,883) (5,205) 344 - (4,476) (14,710)
Exchange realignment EiEE - - - - (696) - (696) -
At end of year RER 63 - 13,216 18,099 10,351 - 23,630 18,099
BAEREBRAT —ZT-ZFRH
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28.

29.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$556,240,000
(2019: HK$601,475,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of HK$659,242,000 (2019: HK$471,974,000) and in Taiwan
of HK$132,017,000 (2019: HK$67,331,000) that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which losses arose for a maximum period of five years and ten
years, respectively. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of
HK$476,143,000 (2019: HK$491,784,000), HK$659,242,000 (2019:
HK$471,974,000) and HK$132,017,000 (2019: HK$67,331,000)
arising in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan, respectively, have not
been recognised as they have arisen in subsidiaries for which, no
assessable profits are expected to be generated in the foreseeable
future.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. At 31 March
2020, the Group did not have unprovided withholding tax (2019:
Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

Authorised: SETE -
2,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each
in nominal value 7B#50.057T
Issued and fully paid: 2RITRHAR

1,381,696,104 shares of HK$0.05 each

in nominal value 7B#0.057T
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28.

29.

ERERIE (7)
AEEBREBABELEZHEBEABY
556,240,000 Tt ( — & — h & : B &
601,475,0007T) * ZEEERIEBEEEMN QA
AR PR HA AR B 1B A E IR 8 B 2 2 FERRBUR
Ao REBRFPEAERSEEE ZFIBEHE
2 Bl B8 %659,242,000 T (=B — hF : 8
#5471,974,0007t ) K 78 % 132,017,000t (=
T—AF : B867,331,0007T) - ZEELER
IBEBH A B R B AR B B
EEXESBEFERTERANERBEF - AR
BHZEHNBLARRATRERTEELER
FaFl > REB - PEAERAEZEEZH
BETE D B A58 % 476,143,000t (ZE— A
@ 5¥5491,784,0007T) © ##5659,242,000
TT(=ZE—HE : j88471,974,0007T) K84
132,017,000t (= Z— N F : E#67,331,000
TC) HESE R IEE E W B TRERR ©

RIBEPEICEMERE  PEKENIINERE
BREANMNSREESRNEREIRE10%TEN
BE ZERB-_TTN\F—A—AREN
WEAR-ZZLtE+-_A=+—HEEEW
R o A REEARF—ABRBINFE -
EHAGIEBHEPBEAEEHERE - BAR
REENHEE5%E10% o AL Z
ERNPERERLNHBARBE -ZEENE—
B—HERNEFIFfDRNREERINHENS
F-RZBZEFE=ZA=1+—H » ~EELE
RBERIOFE(ZZ-NFE &) °

AAFEAHERRKEZRE  WEEHEME
BMFTEH 2 RR -

A
LR

2020
—g-gf

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
BT T

HK$’000
BT

2,000,000,000% G IR &

100,000 100,000

1,381,696, 10412 SR HEE

69,085 69,085
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements therein for
the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

The Group's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then nominal value of the issued share capital
of the subsidiaries acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result
of the reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the
Company'’s shares in 1992.

The Group applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3
that permitted goodwill in respect of business combinations
which occurred prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amount of goodwill remaining
in consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of an
associate, was HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March
2019.

The Group's capital reserve represents the difference between the
consideration for the acquisition of non-controlling interest and
the respective carrying value.

SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Details of the Group’s subsidiary that has material non-controlling
interests are set out below:

Baleno Holdings Limited

30.

31.

31 March 2020 —E=ZF#=H=+—H

i
$$HF$¢F&EE$FW%%%@&E¢
BH2IIRGEREBBRN -

HEAXBDRDE-—ANZF EHATNESA
FEBZEHRSD/ADRECBITRAZHE
SEFTWER B D RS B B2 B BT IRAE
Bz -

REEC S| BEBYBEHRELENEINBEM

1R AR -ER-FARENEBAHE
ENHERERGEREENME - BWE—

%%"1?&8’3%5@ AR R R S RE %J
FoOHSER-Z-ZE=A=+-HK=
—hEZR=+— Elé%,%ﬁzno,ms,ooo;c °

75 S5 B0 (0 AR A 1 1 U B RS AR 2 9 1R (B2
HAREE 2 M2 -
BERFEREDR ZHEQT

REBFEEFERES ZHBARNFE
;T -

HReREEERAT

R ERITE 2 Z
BAERZB D

Percentage of equity interest held by
non-controlling interests

Loss for the period/year allocated to

non-controlling interests E]
Consolidated accumulated balances of AR A IFIERER >
non-controlling interests at the FERERE

reporting dates

DEEFERERNAL,FE

(b)

2020 2019
— 7 —% £F
HK$°000 HK$°000
JBET T BT T
(a)
- (4,829)
(b)

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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31.

©

SUBSIDIARY WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING  31.

INTERESTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised consolidated
financial information of the above subsidiary and its subsidiaries.
The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

Revenue A

Total expenses BRBE

Loss for the year TEEEE

Total comprehensive loss for the year AEEZHEBERE
Notes:

(a) Represented the financial information up to the date of acquisition
of non-controlling interest in September 2018.

(b) The subsidiary does not have non-controlling interest as at 31 March

2020 and 31 March 2019 upon the acquisition of non-controlling
interest by the Group in September 2018.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

BERFEREZ ZHWEB LB @)

TRIRLEKNBARRAME QR 2588
BERREE - IRESFEOBREEM L RE
ERYSHEATNEEE

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000

YT
(note a)

(Kfzta)

1,503,466
(1,516,881)

(13,415)

(84,608)

Hat -

(a) IEEBEZF-NFALRBHFZRER AL
BBEH -

(b) REEEE=F—VENF KIS I E %
# BHBRrAR-—E-—TF=F=+—H
R-FE—NFE=J=+— FUEHIERER o
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 32.
In the prior year, the Group acquired the remaining 36% equity
interest in Baleno Holdings Limited at the total cash consideration

of HK$69,450,000 from the non-controlling shareholders. Baleno
Holdings Limited was an indirect 64%-owned subsidiary of the
Company right before the completion of the transaction and
became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

upon completion of the transaction.

The following summarised the financial impact arising from the
changes in the Group’s ownership interest in Baleno Holdings
Limited on the equity attributable to ordinary equity holders of

the Company:

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

WEB IR R S

REF  NEBELURSREB69,450,0007T
B ERBRRBENEREEERA ARG Z
36%MRME - MR ZTHA > AEBEFEEFE
A% MEREBMERLTNRG s X5% - M
EREEERQTAKANEBEEZREEN
BAF -

LT A BRI e AR A R Z A
ERESZHHRBRAAEEREMEEES
FREEZBBEHE

2019
—E-hEF
HK$’000
BT T
Carrying amount of the non-controlling W BE IE I R HE AR 2 BRTEI (B
interests acquired 445,212
Total consideration paid to the non-controlling  X{J#AFEIERRRANRER
shareholders and related cost HERER AR (70,032)
Increase in equity attributable to ordinary BEANRERRERMEE
equity holders of the Company FERRIEHN 375,180

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. &R KERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) EEXBREXH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to RER > AEEMMBERRXENEES
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$222,582,000 BmE BEAEEEREEEEZHE

and HK$222,582,000, respectively, in respect of lease WS ILR S B B E 222,582,000 7T &

arrangements for plant and equipment (2019: Nil). 78#5222,582,000c (ZZE—hE : ) -

During the year, the Group had non-cash lease modification RER > AEERSEEHNHEERTH
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$69,660,000 ms HFEAREERHEEEMNIER
and HK$71,174,000, respectively, in respect of lease S EBEUR D BB EM69,660,0007T K%

arrangements for retail shops (2019: Nil). B%571,174,0000 (=2 —NEF ) -

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b)

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

At 1 April 2018

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing
bank borrowings
Foreign exchange movement

At 31 March 2019
Effect of adoption of
HKFRS 16

At 1 April 2019

Changes from financing cash flows

New leases

Lease modification

Interest expense

Interest paid classified as financing
cash flow

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing
bank borrowings
Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2020

RZB-N\FEA—H
M ERITER
EIEM BIRITER

SMNE TR

R=ZB-NEF=ZA=1-
BB B ERE2EL
a7

A—ZE-NEFMA—H
BMEFHELEZEB
HHEE
HEEN
FMEZH
ERFESERRE

}E%UIL
M ERTT
szszﬁmﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ

1

A%

7

L)
R=Z-ZF=RA=+—H

RETHELEREED
Lease Interest-bearing
liabilities bank borrowings
Mt SERITE R
HK$’000 HK$000
BEFT BHTFT
- 1,578,304
- 4,492,208
- (4,530,250)
- (11,649)
- 1,528,613
737,721 -
737,721 1,528,613
(227,515) -
222,582 -
(71,174) -
31,214 -
(31,214) -
- 3,715,103
- (4,014,183)
(32,082) -
629,532 1,229,533
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33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. 4#ABeHhERxWE 4w
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases () HEBRLSRHEHAE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement BERRERERTHEHER SR HALE
of cash flows is as follows: P/{1 [ N

2020
—ECEH
HK$000
B F T
Within operating activities KETEEN 362,471
Within financing activities RIESEEIA 227,515
589,986
34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 34. FEEE
(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not (a) RBEHKR  UTHEEBERRIBR
provided for in the financial statements were as follows: TR

2020 2019
“EZEF —ZE-hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank guarantees given in lieu of REBADEZREZ
property rental deposits RATIER 4,892 4,193

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER



Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R M =E

31 March 2020 —E-ZF#=F=+—H

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued) 34. EREE@E)

(b)

The Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD")
initiated a review on the tax affairs of certain subsidiaries
of the Group for the years of assessment from 2005/2006 to
2016/2017.

Details of protective tax assessments issued by the IRD to
certain subsidiaries of the Group:

Protective tax assessments

(b)

e CESS: EhTT
ARBEBR-BTH/SEEAE-T
—NIZE— CRBEE RS BT
B o

BiR EAEE B A B HNRE
MR REFE

Tax reserve

RIEMET TG certificates
Related to the year of assessment Year and month of issue Tax amount purchased
BRRBEE BHEHRAH EaHE CEBERISER
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT JBHET T
Y/A 2005/06 March 2012 69,125 4,500
—EER/IZEER —E--F=A
Y/A 2006/07 March 2013 189,000 31,500
—FEN-FFL —E-=F=§
Y/A 2007/08 March 2014 388,878 34,000
ZEEH/IZEEN —E-NF=A
Y/A 2008/09 March 2015 376,200 38,000
—EENZEEN —E-hF=A
Y/A 2009/10 March 2016 323,648 38,000
—EFH-B-F —B-XE=f
Y/A 2010/11 January 2017 237,600 50,000
—B-T=F—— —E—t5—7
Y/A 2011/12 January 2018 183,745 7,090
—E——/=F—= —ZE-\¥—A8
Y/A 2012/13 April 2018 and January 2019 175,049 46,069
—E-D/ZB-= “ZE2-\FHARZE-NF—A
Y/A 2013/14 April 2018 and January 2020 502,200 166,320
—E-Z/mO - N\FOAR=F=FF—A
Y/A 2014/15 April 2018 247,460 82,500
—E-/==-1 —E-NFHA
Y/A 2015/16 April 2018 230,400 71,710
—E-RH/ZE—-X —E-N\FHWmA
Y/A 2016/17 April 2018 129,628 49,808
—E-NZE—t —Z2-)\FHmA
3,052,933 619,497

The directors of these subsidiaries believe that there are
valid grounds to object to the tax claimed. Subsequent to
the objections filed, the IRD agreed to hold over the tax
claimed completely subject to the purchases of tax reserve
certificates.

In view that the tax review is still in progress, the outcome
of the case is still uncertain. Up to the date of approval of
these financial statements, the directors of the Company
consider that adequate tax provisions have been made in
the financial statements.
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LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

As lessee

The Group leased certain land and buildings for factories, retail
outlets, a training centre and directors' quarters under operating
lease arrangements. Such leases are negotiated for terms ranging
from 3 years to 50 years.

At 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases with its
landlords falling due as follows:

Within one year R—FR
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

After five years NRE#E

The operating lease rentals of certain retail outlets are based on
the higher of a fixed rental and the contingent rent based on the
sales derived from the retail outlets pursuant to the terms and
conditions as set out in the respective rental agreements. As the
future sales of these retail outlets could not be estimated reliably,
the relevant contingent rent has not been included above and
only the minimum lease commitment has been included in the
above table.

35.

BEEERFN(BEEREWF)
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ME=H

tERERA
FEERBECEAEZHAADH L HRAET
RERR - BEMNT - PO RESES -
ZERORTRR=FER+EF -

RIZZE-AF=ZA=1+—0 AEERBEEE
FATLNFABHECEHES P RRREEN
HERFIBERNOT -

2019
—E-hEF

HK$'000
BHEFT
273,727

285,790
374,170

933,687

BOZEMH2EERNBSREEHEER
RIEAEBYIE R RAR R EPI T
EEMEE2RBEHEMEFT 2BSEELE -
HRERERGT L ETEMTRRZEE
o M ERRFFAEBERBEEE - MR AK
B SR -
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36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BEARMESE
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at the end AREBENRERREUTEAE X HFAE :

of the reporting period were as follows:

2020 2019
SE L —2-hE

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT

In respect of property, plant and equipment, F¥I% - BEKRRE @ 2540

contracted but not provided for {BRIZEE 18,669 104,709
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEAXXRS
(a)  During the year, the Group had the following related party () RER > FEEZETUTBEEALR
transactions: 5

2020 2019
—g-%fF —E-hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBYFT BT
Rental expenses paid to related Bl INGIEER
companies HEEA (i) 23,280 24,881

Note: Mt -

(i) Rental expenses were paid to related companies, of which (i) M B R LT EE R AERIHG
certain directors of the Company are also the directors BBRPEAREZHE L A EERE
and beneficial shareholders, for the provision of directors' & BEFIH RIS ZERE]
quarters, retail outlets and a training centre for certain REEREmRRIBAL A zZE%
subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China. The directors EF EFZRBEAZHLIREH
considered that the monthly rentals were charged based on BELE#FFTHZ TS BISET o 14
the prevailing market rates at the dates of entering into the CPEEFZHETEAEGITRESZH
tenancy agreements. The rental expenses of the directors' 2 WFIIRUBIRENZT

quarters were included in the directors' remuneration as
detailed in note 7 to the financial statements.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited ("MRL"), a company
wholly owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease
Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at 282-286
Bin Jiang Road, He Ping Qu, Tianjin, China from MRL as
a retail outlet for the retail and distribution of apparel
and accessories business of the Group for a term of two
years commencing from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent
of RMB1,329,900. During the year, the Group paid to MRL
operating lease rentals in respect of the above property of
HK$18,065,184 (2019: HK$18,595,000).

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited ("Latex"),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease a property located at 22 Perkins Road,
Jardine's Lookout, Hong Kong from Latex as a director's
quarters of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent of HK$400,000.
During the year, the Group paid to Latex operating lease
rentals in respect of the above property of HK$4,000,000
(2019: HK$4,800,000).

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited ("WLEL"),
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an
executive director and controlling shareholder of the
Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor, Metroplaza
Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung, New Territories,
Hong Kong and a car parking space from WLEL as a training
centre of the Group for a term of two years commencing
from 1 April 2018 at the monthly rent of HK$63,200. During
the year, the Group paid to WLEL operating lease rentals
in respect of the above property and a car parking space of
HK$758,400 (2019: HK$758,400).

37.
(b)
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BEALRS @)

RZBE-—NEZA+=0 KEHHEY
EEBRERLATA(LE D (BAEATMN
BOTESRERRREWELELER
BIETEH  BUEABCRFEX
SEMM T EBTIE2829% — 28635 M K IE
B RE - EARSEBEERKREY
ZEERDHEBNTEMT A=
- \ENA-ARAHWE §AHES
B ARY1,329,9007T c RAE » KRE
B LAMERLERFEERERS
B #518,065,184 T (ZFE— A& : B
18,595,0007T) °

RZZ-NFE-A+=0 KREHHEY
E(EB)BERAA(LE]D (HERATF
BOTESRERRREWELELER
B)BITAY  BYEARBAEBE@EL
AERE2  FALREB—ES5
BEzH -A-ZE-\ENA—-HEEH
ME > 8 A€ ABY400,0007T © 7
NE  REER YRGS EZ TR
SIS £ E%4,000,000T(=ZZE— N
& : j8%4,800,0007T) °

RZBE-—NEZA+=0  RE@EEK
FEELEBRAT(KERE]) (BEAD
FAHTESRERBRREWELERE
EB)ETEH  PKEEAREBH
REFES RIS EBE2E
42124207BE R —EEEN - EAERE
EHEN B c BZE-N\EMNA—A
B REWE 0 8 AHSHEY63,200
T o RAE  AEER LAYER —E
FEABKEAZFEEHEHS B
758,4007C (=& — AL : #B#758,400
TT) e
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37. BAEAXXRZ @)

(b)

(0

(continued)

On 19 February 2019, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Sonway Enterprises Limited ("Sonway"), a
company wholly owned by Mr. Ting Kit Chung, an executive
director of the Company to lease a property located at 3/
F, Ernest Court, 27 Ngan Mok Street, Tin Hou, Hong Kong
from Sonway as a director's quarter of the Group for a term
of one year commencing from 1 April 2019 at the monthly
rent of HK$38,000. During the year, the Group paid to
Sonway operating lease rentals in respect of the above
property of HK$456,000 (2019: Nil).

Rental expenses paid to related companies also constituted
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed under the
section of "Details of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions" of the Report of the Directors, the remaining
rental expenses paid to related companies which constitute
continuing connected transactions are exempt from the
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders'
approval requirements set out in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

Short term employee benefits EHEEET

Post-employment benefits BBz ER

Total compensation paid to key FEEEAE
management personnel Eaiy pk

The key management personnel of the Group refers to the
executive directors of the Company.

Further details of directors' remuneration are included in
note 7 to the financial statements.
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(b)

(@]

(#)
RZZE-—HIFE-A+NA AEEH
IEREZEERAR(NEE]D (BELQT
HITEETHELRE2EHE) TS
#) » [@EREABEE B REREH 275K
TR FRAFREBNESES - H
—E-hENA-Bi BE—F
B & AHB%38,0000T - RAE » &NE
B LR IEE S FELHERES
7B#456,000T (ZF— N E  H&) °

AEEARXNNESERTER LD
BABVATHEERS - BRRERE
EERERTERRNBERERS
FHEI - BT AREEQRAH
HEHERATBRER EHRAE14AFSR
EEHRRBER  DERBIRRAED

AEBFEEEASEHH :
2020 2019
—g-BF =
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
48,577 56,601
36 36
48,613 56,637

REENFEEEASNAQTNHT
-

EEMEFRERNMBRRMEET -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Financial assets
2020

Trade receivables FEURBRER

Bills receivable EREE

Financial assets included in prepayments, BERBARE TR
deposits and other receivables (note 22) HitEWERR A2

EREE(M7722)

Debt instruments at amortised cost ROBERANEL IR

Financial assets at fair value through BARESABEN
profit or loss EREE

Long term rental deposits EfEsike

Derivative financial assets TEEeRERE

Cash and cash equivalents RERATZEN

Total &gt

2019

Trade receivables FEBR TR

Bills receivable EWEE

Financial assets included in prepayments, BENEARE - FTTER
deposits and other receivables (note 22) Hit R ERR A Z

SREEMF22)

Debt instruments at amortised cost REBHERANETRTE

Financial assets at fair value through BAREFABRN
profit or loss SREE

Long term rental deposits Effigike

Derivative financial assets TEERMERE

Cash and cash equivalents BeRHLZEEY

Total =5

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

38. REFAINEWMIA
REEHF  SESMTAREENT :

sMaE
—EIEH
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAAERA  REBHRE
BENERMEE HeEmEE &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BT
- 712,289 712,289
- 197,307 197,307
- 699,025 699,025
- 137,027 137,027
131,722 - 131,722
- 76,149 76,149
41 - 4
- 1,737,012 1,737,012
131,763 3,558,809 3,690,572
—E-1EF
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost Total
BAREGA REHBHEEE
BENEREE NEMERE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT
- 763,999 763,999
- 186,501 186,501
- 715,142 715,142
- 232,775 232,775
145,298 - 145,298
- 86,720 86,720
7,057 - 7,057
- 2,079,982 2,079,982
152,355 4,065,119 4,217,474
EAEREBERAT —Z-TFR
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 38. REFESHNEMIAm

Financial liabilities SRAEE
2020 —E-EF
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RE#H
BRARETA A
BENemas SRBE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Trade payables FE(SERRR - 708,400 708,400
Bills payable BNEE - 1,472 1,472
Financial liabilities included in BIEREMENERR
other payables and accrued Erathzemas
liabilities (note 26) (K1zE26) - 494,459 494,459
Derivative financial liabilities fTEeREE 419 - 419
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 2R{TE R - 1,229,533 1,229,533
Lease liabilities HEaE - 629,532 629,532
Total =51 419 3,063,396 3,063,815
2019 —E—NE
Financial Financial
liabilities at fair liabilities at
value through amortised
profit or loss cost
RO #H
BRAREFTA BRANHY
BENEReE TRIBE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEFT BT T BT
Trade payables FERERR - 824,564 824,564
Bills payable ERRE - 21,443 21,443
Financial liabilities included BREREENERI R
in other payables and accrued EtaERzEmas
liabilities (note 26) (Btzt26) - 495,636 495,636
Derivative financial liabilities fTHESREE 3,334 - 3,334
Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt BR{TE X - 1,528,613 1,528,613
Total &5t 3,334 2,870,256 2,873,590
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39.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

39.

31 March 2020 —E=ZF#=H=+—H
SRMIAZAAEBEER
AEESMTIAZRAERAAE(RAERE

HARBEEMBEE 2SR T AR &M
Ti

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE ARE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ke 33 —E-hE g et 223 —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BEFT BT T
Financial assets SREE
Derivative financial instruments PTHEEMIA 41 7,057 41 7,057
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFTABEN
through profit or loss SRIEE 131,722 145,298 129,920 145,298
Debt instruments at amortised cost % #8524 HY
BHTA 137,027 232,775 119,028 229,019
268,790 385,130 248,989 381,374
Financial liabilities SsRas
Derivative financial instruments PTHESBMIA 419 3,334 419 3,334

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, bills receivable, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, bills payable, an amount due to an associate,
the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings, and
financial liabilities included in other payables and accrued
liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

EEECHMRERASEEY  BURIRR
F’Eﬂﬁlfﬂiiﬁ“ BEREMTR - TSR EMER
RAZEMEE - BAIRR BENEE &
H BN EFIE - IMRRTERRBHORE
?EE"E{WEHBE ARESTEERN 2 ERE BN
DNAEERAKREERS  TEARKETAN
FHFHBE -

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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39.

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group's finance department headed by the financial controller
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
department directly reports to the board. At each reporting date,
the finance department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied
in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the
board.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in
a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and debt instruments at amortised cost are estimated based
on quoted prices.

The fair values of the long term rental deposits and non-current
interest-bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk
for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at 31 March 2020 was
assessed to be insignificant.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions. Derivative
financial instruments, including forward currency contracts,
are measured using valuation techniques similar to forward
pricing, using present value calculations. The models incorporate
various market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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EZEER - RE-—REA - BHEBITEE
TEEEZE  WREGEFEAZIZHA
B hERESSESHE -

ERMEERBBEZARBEUZTIARBERS
F(MPRARERHE)ENRE T Z2URS
AR - EIMEEAARERS AT E
KRR

BAREFABENEREERRCEENS
MEH TEN D AETRBREG

REESRERWERTERFRDAEHESE
REAELEN  FERRRSTIHAZT
BB A2 FIRE R AR SR8 MFT
HEQAE -AEER-Z-EF=/=1-

AR B RTERNE I TEORRMTER
FEKX o
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31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39. $MIBEZzARESHK@E)

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Derivative financial assets TTEEMERE
Financial assets at fair value BN REFTABRN
through profit or loss SRIEE

Derivative financial assets TTESMERE
Financial assets at fair value B REFTABRN
through profit or loss TRIEE

TRIPAAEBENEMTEANDIAEBEFES
&

BAREFBHEE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020
R-B-EF=A=1+—HWAAREBEFERA

Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
AER B BX
TBH AR TrTEERM
wE BABIE AR
(B—#R) (=) (=) wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BEFr BYFr
- a1 - a1
129,920 - - 129,920
129,920 41 - 129,961

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019

R=B—NE= A=+ —BNAREHERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HAERR BX E-D/N
k) AIEEN TRIERERMY
HwE BAEE AR
(5F—4) (=) (€= FEEL]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B FT BEF T BEFT
- 7,057 - 7,057
145,298 - - 145,298
145,298 7,057 - 152,355
RACREAMAT —E-TEHR @
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39. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39. €BTEREZAAREBEZEH %)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: BALEGENERE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020
R-B-EF=A=+—HWAAETERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
PATERR BX BX
T BIE k) TR
WwE WARE L7PN ¢:1
(B—4) (=) (=) BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T EETFT BETFT BT T
Derivative financial liabilities rTHEEmAas - 419 - 419

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019
REZB—NFE=ZA=+—HWAREFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

HER EPA EX
B AEEN  TTBRRY
BE  BAME  BARE
(HE—) Er) (FE=H) o5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT  BETT  EEFT BT

Derivative financial liabilities rTHEERas - 3,334 - 3,334
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31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL 39. €RIBEZ A NAREZEHE)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) BAREFTENERE - (&)

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group had no R-B-EF=ZA=+—HAR=-Z—NE=A

financial instruments measured at fair value under Level 3. =+—8 AEFWERAALABIIEE=H2
SMIE-

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR - eREEREHEEHIETAQARER

measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into EFE—PEE_MoBENVER > FERE=H

or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities HEAREBEBH(ZE—NF : &) o

(2019: Nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: EFHEFEALENEE -

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2020
R-B_ZE=A=+—HWAAETERH
Quoted prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

AER B BX

TBH AR TrTEERM

WwE BABIE AR
(B—4R) (E=#%) (B=%%) m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B TFT BEFr BYFr

Debt instruments at amortised cost % T ##H KA HY
BHFITA 119,028 - - 119,028

Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2019
REZB-—NFE=ZA=+—HNWAREFTERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

AR DN BX

358 AIEE TAIEERHY

HwE BABIE EARIE
(55—4) (E=#) (E=4) FCbE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BHF T BT BT

Debt instruments at amortised cost % T #$H R AR
BHELTA 229,019 - - 229,019

BAERWEMAT —B-TEH @
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise bank loans, cash and bank deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group's
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade receivables, bills receivable, trade payables
and bills payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into various derivative financial
instruments, including principally forward currency contracts.
The purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the Group's
operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing each
of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's
accounting policies in relation to derivative financial instruments
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using an
appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To manage
this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group may enter into
interest rate swap contracts to reduce its exposure to interest rate
fluctuations.

TEXWINCA Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020
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40.

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax and equity (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

2020 —E-EE
Hong Kong dollar B
Hong Kong dollar B
2019 —ZE-NEF
Hong Kong dollar B
Hong Kong dollar e

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other
than the units' functional currencies. Approximately 57% (2019:
45%) of the Group's sales are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the operating units making the
sale, whilst nearly 25% (2019: 27%) of costs are denominated in
currencies other than the units' functional currencies.

31 March 2020 —E=ZF#=H=+—H

40. KEREEREERBE @)
FREMR(E)
THREBTEEEHEEMEENERT » &
EENBRBANER RS H SR T RORE
BE (BY TSNS E) OG-

Percentage
point of
interest rate

Increase/
(decrease) in
profit before

tax and equity
BRBLAD
R R
i, R
HK$'000
BT T

increase/
(decrease)

R,
()
O

1 (15,016)
(1 15,016
1 (15,535)
(1) 15,535
SNE R
AEEFEXRSEERAR  ZRARRELEE

A BB ThRE E M LU Ih 2 B S ITEE E IR
B8 o REEBNST% (ZZ—NE : 45%) ZHE
DUKEBNRER I EREH » RIS
#25% (ZB—NF 1 27%) ZRANTI S E
IIhEEE LN EHELEE o

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BiEMETEEEREE &)
POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) INEELBR ()
THREMTARSHR  CEEMEHHEE
WIERT » AEEIBBATER kA EEHRE
BHABRTENARSEZSE (RNEY
HEENABAALENEE) O -

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the RMB
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax and the Group's equity (due to changes

in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

Percentage of Increase/

exchange rate (decrease) in

increase/ profit before

(decrease) tax and equity

BRBLA

ERE AR s

CR2) 2, 0A)

% HK$'000

B1FE BT T
2020 —ECEH

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B HRARKEE 1 1,134

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {388 5 A R¥ FHE (1) (1,134)
2019 —E-NF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB B HARBRE 1 1,090

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB {3854 5 A R FHE (1) (1,090)

Credit risk FEREE

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, and derivative financial
instruments, arises from default of the counterparties, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments, which is considered by the directors as not significant
as the counterparties of these other financial assets are mainly
well-recognised corporations.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's exposure to

credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 21
to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2020

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March 2020. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to

credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

31 March 2020 —E-FF=H=4+—H

40. HKEKREEEEREK #)
EERR(E)
R-E-EF=F=+—AZRARMBRFE
R
TREFRBEAEMEEREELEERE
AESRAR(EERBAMEREL - BIEH
HERNATEBETHERADERERE N 21ER
TES) URZZE-EF=A=1+—H2ZH%
RS - T2z e BALREELER
ERFRUHBERAREREZSERAR -

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12188
EH
FEBIR AEAEHEREEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F-EBR F-RER S=ER ESeEX ma
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EBETT EBEFr BEFT EBETT
Trade receivables* FEURBRFR* - - - 745,677 745,677
Bills receivable i 197,307 - - - 197,307
Financial assets included in BRERBEMRE -
prepayments, deposits e RHEMAEK
and other receivables BRRAZEMEE 817,045 - - - 817,045
Debt instruments at amortised cost & #8 KAy
BEITAE 190,724 - - - 190,724
Long term rental deposits REHESZRSE 76,149 - - - 76,149
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEEY 1,737,012 - - - 1,737,012
3,018,237 - - 745,677 3,763,914
BAEEEFRLE —T-TER
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40.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. B EMRSEEERBE %)

POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 March 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March 2019. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to
credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

EERR(E)
REFE-NF=ZA=+—HZRARBRF#Z
e
TREIIBBEAEEFEBRXZEFEEERR
REERR(EERBAHERMEL » BRIEH
tER A UBEMNETBERARE HZ1ER
TES) URZZE-HIAEFE=ZA=+—HZHF
HEREIN 2z eBEAeREEREIE
RO BIEREEAREZEFERE °

Lifetime ECLs

AEAFHENEEER

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
BEIMER F=ER BEER Foe)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MTFT BETT BET
777,498
- - - 186,501

|
|
~
~
>N
N
©
3

- - - 863,185

- 47,853 - 266,864
- - - 86,720
2,079,982

- 47,853 777,498 4,260,750

12-month

ECLs

1218 A

FE A

EEEE

Stage 1

F—REER

HK$'000

BT T

Trade receivables* FEWR BR R * -

Bills receivable EWEE 186,501
Financial assets included in BRERBARE

prepayments, deposits AR EAMmEK

and other receivables RRAZe@MEE 863,185
Debt instruments at amortised cost %2 #8424

BEIAR 219,011

Long term rental deposits RPHESES 86,720

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRSEMEY 2,079,982

3,435,399

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified

approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf #& 3R R 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts
and bank loans. As at 31 March 2020, 100% (2019: 98%) of the
Group's total borrowings would mature in less than one year.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

On

demand

BRER
HK$'000
BT

31 March 2020 —E—-F#=H=+—H
40. KEREEREERBE @)

FED R
AEEEBEZERFBRITEIRRTERUGEE
AESMEEEREEHRETE AN 2=
EF=ZA=+—H FAEELERN100%(=
T—NFE :98%) BN —FREIH -

FEERBERRNERNEE  REFRER
AT EBIERBENT

2020
—g-%F
3to
Less than less than Over
3 months 12 months 1 year Total
=2
=@EAUR +—@RAA BB—% &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT EBE¥Fr BETFT
1,230,197 - - 1,230,197
690,687 17,713 - 708,400
1,472 - - 1,472
334,223 - - 494,459
419 - - 419

66,285 170,571 601,702 838,558

Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 21T & -
Trade payables FEATRRTR -
Bills payable FEfT & -
Financial liabilities included in BIENE A ETIRR
other payables and REFTEERZ
accrued liabilities SRIBE 160,236
Derivative financial liabilities THEeRAas -
Lease liabilities HEaE -
160,236

2,323,283 188,284 601,702 3,273,505

On
demand

REXR
HK$'000
BT T

2019
—Z-nF
3to
Less than  less than Over

3 months 12 months 1 year Total

==

=@BEUAR +t=—EAR BB—F &5t
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BMFT BETT BETFT
1,373,198 125,650 37,669 1,536,517

791,729 32,835 - 824,564
21,443 - - 21,443
385,400 - - 495,636
3,334 - - 3,334

Interest-bearing bank borrowings Kt 24817 & -
Trade payables FEATERRX -
Bills payable eI -
Financial liabilities included in BEREMESIRR
other payables and accrued REFEERZ
liabilities EWAans 110,236
Derivative financial liabilities THEemas -
110,236

2,575,104 158,485 37,669 2,881,494

RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BIERREEEEREE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return
to the ordinary equity holders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2020 and 31 March 2019.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash equivalents, divided by
total equity. The Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio at
an appropriate level.

B EER
kR - RERBESEEY

Total interest-bearing debts
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Total equity HRER

Gearing ratio (times)
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EXRE B E(FE)

BEREE
FEBEREEEDBAAEBEERSFENSK
EEeh  ANBAKENEREEDES U
FEEBERMEESIRADEE -

TEEEEEREBURRBLEERNEE
EHFAE - REEURBRARERRIREN
BRE - BRRBBZELARBITHRURISRA
BEXEE NBE-_Z-TF=A=+—H
R—Z—hE=A=1+—HLFER  EXE
BHEZ  BCRREFILEESE -

REEERELEBELRERER  EXEE
LERZNBRERRESBENRNENEER
BROVRERSTE - AEBNBREHEERFER
BEEERNEEAKTF -

2020 2019
= —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETT BETT
1,229,533 1,528,613
(1,737,012) (2,079,982)
(507,479) (551,369)
4,930,213 5,377,554

-0.1 -0.1
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS
Prepayments and deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other payables and accrued liabilities

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves (note)
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
RMBARZRE

RBEE
FANRER &
RERREEEY

BRBEE

RBAE
HitE SRR B & E

REBEEFHE
BEFEE
FE
BEATIRA

TG =)
BORREIR S

Mg

41.

DA BRI R

RABRBEBR 2P BRRREROT ¢

2020 2019

—s-%f e I

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEFT BETT

2,267,007 2,612,009

201 201

348 268

549 469

135 393

414 76

2,267,421 2,612,085

69,085 69,085

2,198,336 2,335,746

- 207,254

2,267,421 2,612,085
RAEKEARRLE —T-TFER
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41.

42.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. ARIBHERREK#E)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: et -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: AR EFEENT -
Share Capital
premium redemption Contributed Retained
account reserve surplus profits Total
RZA &S
RE R e #E BHBER REE A bl
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2018 R-Z—-N\FMA—AH 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,995,644 2,749,412
Total comprehensive AFEEREBALEE
income for the year - - - 842 842
2018/2019 interim dividend —E-N\/=F-Hh
FEPHRE 10 - - - (207,254) (207,254)
2018/2019 proposed —E-NZE-N
final dividend FERRRHRE 10 - - - (207,254)  (207,254)
At 31 March 2019 and RZZE-—AF
1 April 2019 =A=+—Hk
RZZE-NENA—B 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,581,978 2,335,746
Total comprehensive AFEEREBALRE
income for the year - - - 760 760
2019/2020 interim dividend —EB-hZBF
FEPHRE 10 - - - (138,170)  (138,170)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-FTF
=A=+—H 703,365 1,695 48,708 1,444,568 2,198,336

The Company's contributed surplus represents the difference
between the nominal value of the issued share capital of the
Company and the then combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired on the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of the Company's
shares in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), a distribution may be made out of the contributed
surplus under certain circumstances.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 19 June 2020.
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